



CONTENTS

Company Information	02
Notice of Annual General Meeting	03
Vision And Mission Statements	05
Chairperson's Review	06
Directors Report	08
Six Years Financial Summery	16
Pattern of Share Holding	17
Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance	19
Independent Auditor's Review Report	21
Independent Auditor's Report	22
Statement of Financial Position	28
Statement of Profit or Loss	30
Statement of Comprehensive Income	31
Statement of Cash Flow	32
Statement of Changes in Equity	33
Notes to and Forming Part of Financial Statements	34
Proxy Form	78



COMPANY INFORMATION

CHAIRPERSON

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Mohammad Mahboob

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mrs. Shahnaz Umar (Non-Executive / Chairperson)

Mr. Mohammad Mahboob (Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer)

Mrs. Sadiya Umair (Non-Executive) Mr. Muhammad Tariq (Non-Executive) Mr. Saeed Ahmed Khan (Executive Director)

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Non-Executive / Independent Director) (Non-Executive / Independent Director) Mrs. Zainab Malik

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik Chairman Mr. Muhammad Tariq Member Mrs. Zainab Malik Member

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mrs. Zainab Malik Chairperson Mrs. Sadiya Umair Member Mr. Mohammad Mahboob Member

COMPANY SECRETARY & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan

AUDITORS

M/S Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq (Chartered Accountants) Member of Russell Bedford International

House No 72-A, Faisal Town, Lahore.

TAX ADVISER

Tipu Associates 97/8-B, Babar Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

LEGAL ADVISER

Salman Akram Raja. Raja Mohammad Akram & Co., Advocates & Legal Consultants 33-C Main Gulberg Lahore.

REGISTRAR OF THE COMPANY

Vision Consulting Ltd. 3 - C, 1st floor, LDA Flats, Lawrance Road Lahore. Ph: + 92 42 36283096-97

REGISTERED OFFICE

8-Km, Manga Raiwind Road, Raiwind, District Kasur. Ph: + 92 42 35392305-07, Fax: + 92 42 35392308 W: www.hiratex.com.pk

MILLS

8 KM Manga Raiwind Road Raiwind District Kasur.



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 29th annual general meeting of the members of Hira Textile Mills Limited will be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2020 at 02.30 PM at the registered office (MILL SITE) of the company i.e. 8-KM, Manga Raiwind Road, District Kasur, to transact the following:

- 1. To confirm the minutes of the last General Meeting.
- 2. To receive and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended on June 30, 2020 together with the Directors and auditor's reports thereon.
- 3. To consider appointment of external audits for the financial year ending June 30, 2021.
- 4. To transact any other business with the permission of the

(By the order of the Board)

lacal Alb Saeed Ahmad Khan

Company Secretary

Notes

Lahore: October 06, 2020

- 1- A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint any person as proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. No person other than a member shall act as proxy. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other Authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority, in order to be valid, must be deposited at the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting and must be duly stamped, singed and witnessed.
- 2- Any individual beneficial owner of CDC entitle to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring his/her original CNIC or passport, account and participants. ID numbers to prove his/her identity and incase of proxy it must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC of passport. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents requires for such purpose.

In terms of sub section 1(b) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2017, Members can also attend and participate in the AGM through video conference facility, if members residing the vicinity, collectively holding 10% or more shareholding, provide their consent in writing, to participate in the AGM through video conference at least ten (10) days prior to date of AGM. After receiving the consent of the members in aggregate 10% or more shareholding, the Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least five (5) days before the date of the AGM along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

- 4- The audited financial statements of the company for the year ended June 30, 2020 have been placed at the website: www.hiratex.com.pk
- 5- Shareholders are requested to immediately notify change in address. If any to the company share register M/s. Vision Consulting Ltd. 3-C, 1st floor, LDA Flats, Lawrence Road Lahore. And also furnish attested photocopy of their CNIC as per listing regulation, if not provided earlier.



بذر یعینوٹس ہذا مطلع کیا جاتا ہے کہ حراثیک شائل ملزلیمیٹیڈ کے صص داران کا انتیبواں (29th) سالا نہ اجلاسِ عام 28 اکتوبر 2020ء (بروزبدھ) بوقت دو پہر 02:30 بج کمپنی کے رجٹر ڈ آفس (ملزسائٹ)8 کلومیٹر مانگارائیونڈ روڈ ضلع قصور میں درج ذیل امور کی انجام دہی کے لئے منعقد ہوگا۔

- 1- پچھلےسالا نہ اجلاس عام کی کاروائی کی توثیق۔
- 2- 30 جون20<u>20 ء</u> کوختتمہ سال کے لئے ڈائر یکٹرزاورآ ڈیٹرز کی رپورٹ مع آ ڈٹ شدہ حسابات کی وصولی اور منظوری
 - 3- 30 جون <u>202</u>1 وکنته سال کے لئے ممپنی کے بیرونی آڈیٹرز کا تقر راورا نکے مشاہر کے انعین۔
 - 4- چیئریرسن کی اجازت ہے دیگرامور کی انجام دہی۔

تجكم بورڈ

لاہور

6اكتوبر20<u>2</u>09ء

land Alb سعيداحرخان سمپنی سیکرٹری

نوٹس:

1- اجلاس ہذامیں شرکت اور ووٹ دینے کا اہل ممبراینی بجائے شرکت اور ووٹ دینے کے لئے کسی دوسر مےمبرکوا پنایراکسی مقرر کرسکتا ہے۔ پراکسیاں تا آنکہ مئوثر ہوسکیں اجلاس کے انعقاد کےوقت سے کم از کم 48 گھنے قبل کمپنی کے رجسٹر ڈوفتر میں لاز ما پہنچ جا ئیں۔

- 2-سی ڈی تا (CDC) کے حصد داروں سے التماس ہے کہ اجلاس میں شرکت کے وقت پیش کرنے کے لئے اپنااصل شناختی کارڈ ،اکاؤنٹ نمبریایا سپورٹ ساتھ لائیں۔
- 3- حصص یافتگان اجلاس میں بذریعہوڈیولنک سہولت شریک ہوسکتے ہیں کمپنی کواجلاس کےانعقاد سے کم از کم دس روزقبل کسی دوسر ہے شہر میں مقیم دس فیصدیا زا کدشئیر ہولڈرز کی جانب سے بذریعہ ویڈیولئک اجلاس میں شرکت کی خواہش موصول ہونے کی صورت میں کمپنی متعلقہ مقام پروڈیولنک سہولت کا اہتمام کرے گی اور کمپنی اجلاس کے انعقاد سے کم از کم یا نچے دن یہلے ویڈیولنک سہولت کے مقام سے ممبران کو مطلع کرے گی۔
 - 4- کمپنی کے آڈٹ شدہ مالیاتی حسابات برائے سال مختتمہ 30 جون <u>202</u>0ء کمپنی کی ویب سائٹ www.hiratex.com.pk پر چسیاں کردیے گئے ہیں۔
- 5- حصص یافتگان سے درخواست ہے کہ وہ اپنے پیتہ میں تبدیلی سے متعلق اطلاع فوری طور بریمپنی کے رجٹر ارمیسرز وژن کنسلٹنگ لیمیٹڈ -C-3- فرسٹ فلور۔ایل ڈی افیلٹس لارنس روڈ لا ہورکودیں ۔اسکےعلاوہ جنھوں نے اپنے شناختی کارڈ کی کا پیاں مہیانہیں کیس ہیں وہ بھی اپنے شناختی کارڈ کی مصدقہ کا لی جمجیں۔



VISION STATEMENT

A dynamic profitable and professionally managed successful business organization.

MISSION STATEMENT

Hira Textile Mills Ltd is committed to the highest standards of integrity, honesty, openness and professionalism in all of its activities whenever they are undertaken.

We, the Management Team of HTML are striving to improve the quality of yarn by continuously improving its manufacturing facilities. We are committed to positioning the Company at the apex of the industry by satisfying our valued customers, archiving superior returns for shareholders, by providing congenial work environment where the employees feel part of the organization and be a good corporate citizen by fulfilling our social responsibilities.



CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW

It gives me pleasure to present you the annual review of the audited financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2020 and the overall performance of Board. I would take this opportunity to invite you for 29th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Review of the Company's Performance

Due to decrease in sales during this financial year, performance of the company in term of profitability is in alarming position. The global slowdown due to COVID-19 Corona Virus pandemic started closing down economies through lock downs as a means to control the spread of virus. The company faced this period diligently. The company's operations and business activities remained completely suspended almost 2 months. Day by day competition from neighboring countries is increasing. Margins have been squeezed and it appears that they will be further compressed in time to come. I would like to appreciate the efforts of the management towards cost reduction, better utilization of capacities and product development. During the current year debt restructuring have been carried out with one bank and draft agreement for restructuring has been completed with another bank has been finalized. After implementation of restructuring, significant milestone for the company would be achieved. The Company has to work harder to compete with increasing competition. Plans of the Company should yield better efficiencies and reduce production cost.

The Board is aware of the importance of its role in achieving objectives of the Company. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for corporate & financial reporting Framework and is committed to good Corporate Governance. Board is devoted and focused towards Company's value and mission. All the significant issue throughout the year were presented before The Board and its committees to strengthen and formulize the corporate decision making process and partially all the related party transactions were approved by the Board on the recommendation of audit committee.

The Board has prepared and approved the Director's report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the company and the content of the Directors report are in accordance with the requirement of applicable law and regulations. The Board ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

During current year, one non-executive Director resigned and an independent non-executive Director appointed in place of resignee director. The Board of Directors met four times during the year to review the overall performance, appraise financial results and overall effectiveness of the role played by the Board in achieving the company's objectives. Meeting agendas and supporting papers were provided in timely manner for the Board meeting. Attendance of Board members in Board and committee meeting has been satisfactory. Board members do have the suitable knowledge, variety of expertise and experience that is required to successfully govern the business. Individual Board members are committed to perform for the betterment of the company. Areas of planning, risk management, policy development, budgeting, reporting, monitoring and approval have been appropriately given time and discussed with better outcomes.

On behalf of the Board, I appreciate the support of all financial institution. I express gratitude to our valued customers. It is hard work and dedication of all our employees that have made such results possible.

> Mrs. Shahnaz Umar (Chairperson)

L. U_ar

Lahore: October 05, 2020



چیئریرس کی جائزه ریورٹ

30 جون2020ء کوختم ہونے والے سال کے لیے آڈٹ شدہ مالی حسابات پر سالانہ جائزہ رپورٹ اور بورڈ کی مجموعی کارکردگی کی رپورٹ ہوئے ہوئے خوشی محسوس کرتی ہوں۔ اس موقع سے فائدہ اٹھاتے ہوئے میں آپ کو کمپنی کی سالا نہ انتیبویں میٹنگ میں شرکت کی دعوت دیتی ہوں۔

فروخت میں کمی کی وجہ سے نمپنی کومنافع بخش ہونے کےمعاملہ میں ایک خطرنا کےصورتحال کاسامنا ہے۔اس نمپنی کوبھی پوری دنیا کی طرح کرونا۔19 کی عالمی ویاءاوراس بے نتھے میں ا معاشی ست روی کی وجہ سے ایک مشکل سال کا سامنا کرنا پڑا ۔ کمپنی نے اس مدت کا بڑی تند ہی سے سامنا کیا ۔ کمپنی کی کاروباری اور آپریشنل سرگرمیاں تقریباً 2 ماہ تک معطل رہیں۔ ہمسامیر ممالک کے ساتھ کاروباری مسابقت میں اضافہ ہور ہاہے جس کی وجہ سے کاروباری منافع سکڑ رہا ہے اور ایسامحسوس ہوتا ہے کہ اس میں مزید وسعت ہوگی۔ میں مینجمنٹ کی اخراجات میں کمی لانے ،استعداد کار کا بہتر استعال کرنے اورمصنوعات کی ترقی کے لئے کاوشوں کوسراہتی ہوں۔اس سال کے دوران نمپنی نے ایک بینک کے ساتھ ری سٹر کچرنگ کروائی اورایک بینک کے ساتھ ری سٹر کچرنگ کے معاملات طے یا گئے ہیں۔اس ریسٹر کچرنگ کی بدولت کمپنی اینے اہداف حاصل کرنے میں کامیاب ہوجائے گی ۔ کمپنی کے جاری منصوبوں کی تکمیل کے لیےا سےانتقک کوشش کرنا ہوگی جس کی بدولت کمپنی کی استعداد کار میں بہتری اور یوں پیداوار کی لاگت میں کمی واقع ہوگی۔

بورڈ کمپنی کے مقاصد کے حصول کیلئے اپنے کردار سے بخو بی واقف ہے۔ بورڈ کارپوریٹ گورننس اور مالیاتی ساخت کی رپورٹنگ کے سلسلہ میں اپنی ذمہ دارپوں کوتسلیم کرتا ہے اور کار پوریٹ گورنٹس کی بہتر پخیل کے لئے پُرعزم ہے۔ بورڈ نے کمپنی کے مشن کی پخیل براپنی پوری توجہ صرف کی ہوئی ہے اوراس کیلئے پوری طرح سرشار ہے۔ سال بھر میں تمام اہم مسائل بورڈیااس کی کمیٹیوں کےروبروکاروباری فیصلہ سازی کے ممل کومظبوط بنانے کیلئے پیش کیے گئے اورخاص طور بر کمپنی کی طرف سے کیے گئے تمام متعلقہ یارٹی کے ساتھ لین دین کو آ ڈٹ تمیٹی کی سفارشات پر بورڈ نے منظوری دی۔

بورڈ نے اس بات کوبھی یقینی بنایا ہے کمجلس نظماء کی رپورٹ نمپنی کی سہ ماہی اور سالانہ مالیاتی حسابات کےساتھ شائع ہواورمجلس نظماء کی رپورٹ کا مواد قابلِ اطلاق قوانین اور قواعد وضوابط کےمطابق ہو۔بورڈ نے اس بات کوبھی یقینی بنایا ہے کہا ندرونی کنٹرول کا مناسب نظام موجودر ہےاوراس کیمؤ ٹرطریقے سےعملدرآ مداورنگرانی کی جاتی رہے۔

موجودہ سال کے دوران ایک غیرا گیزیکٹوڈ ائر کیٹر نے استعفیٰ دیااوراس کی جگہ برایک آزادغیرا گیزیکٹوڈ ائر کیٹرکو تعنیات کیا گیا۔ بورڈ آف ڈائر کیٹرز نے سال کے دوران مجموعی کارکردگی کا جائزہ لینے کیلئے مالیاتی نتائج کی تشخیص اور بورڈ کے ذریعے کمپنی کے مقاصد کے حصول میں ادا کردہ کردار کی مجموعی کارکردگی ماینے کے لیے جار ملاقاتیں کیس۔ بورڈ کے ا جلاسوں کے لیے میٹنگ ایجنڈ بےاورمعاون کا غذات بروقت وصول کیے گئے ۔ بورڈ اوراس کی دیگر کمیٹیوں کے ممبران کی حاضری تسلی بخش رہی ۔ بورڈ کے ممبران متنوع پس منظرر کھنے والےا نتہائی تجربہ کاراور کاروبار کو کامیابی ہے چلانے کا وسیع تجربہر کھتے ہیں۔ بورڈممبران انفرادی طور پر بھی کمپنی کی بہتری کیلئے پُرعزم ہیں۔ بورڈمیٹنگز میں منصوبہ بندی کے مل اور ادارہ کولاحق خطرات، پالیسی ڈیویلیمنٹ ،تخمینہ سازی اور مالیاتی ساخت کی نگرانی اورمنظوری پرمعقول طریقے سے بحث وتمحیص کی جاتی ہے۔

بورڈ کی جانب سے میں مالیاتی اداروں کے تعاون کوقدر کی نگاہ ہے دیکھتی ہوں۔میں معز زصارفین کا تہددل سے شکر بیادا کرتی ہوں اورا پینے تمام ملاز مین کا بھی جنگی شب وروزمنت کی بدولت بہتر نتاریج ممکن ہو سکے۔

> سل کر مزشهناد عر (چیئر پرس)

5ا كتوبر2020ء



DIRECTORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors feels pleasure in presenting the Company's Audited financial statements together with the auditor's report thereon for the year ended on June 30, 2020

Financial Statements have been endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer in accordance with the Code of corporate Governance, having been recommended for approval by the Audit Committee of the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for presentation.

Company Performance

Following are the operating & Financial results:-

(Rupees in Million)

		•
	2020	2019
Net Sale	1,463.374	(2,645.989)
Gross (Loss)	(66.415)	(1,061.512)
Share of (Loss) of Hira Terry	(68.867)	(567.992)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation	(291.199)	(1,859.805)
Provision for taxation	(12.590)	(156.037)
(Loss) for the year	(303.789)	(2,015.842)
(Loss)/Earning per Share	(3.51)	(23.28)

Sales revenue of Company remained lower by 40% mainly due to weak demand of spun yarn in the Faisalabad yarn market and COVID-19 global pandemic which adversely impacted the textile industry as well as business of the company. The company faced the challenging times where we faced compulsory closure of mills for a period of almost two months from March 24, 2020 to May 12, 2020, cancellation of sales orders, disruption in supply chain and constant threat of the spread of virus. The company bore estimated revenue loss of Rs. 180 million during the lock down period. The management of the company managed to curtail losses which have reduced to Rs. 303 million from Rs. 2,015.84 million for the previous financial year. This was possible due to effective cost cutting initiatives taken by the management and shift to an efficient product mix which lowered production cost and in turn resulted in reduction in gross loss ratio from 40% in the previous year to 4.5%.

Loss per share for the year is Rs. 3.51 as compared to loss per share of Rs. 23.28 during the corresponding previous year.

Due to the above factors, the Company faced severe liquidity crisis due to which it was unable to make timely repayments of loans and interest/mark-up thereon. Four banks have filed recovery suits against the Company in Lahore High Court. Similarly the Company has also filed recovery claims against four banks in Lahore High Court.

The management is concerned about the profitability of the company for the coming year due to extremely weak demand of spun yarn and ever increasing production cost, high cotton price and uncertainty about the size of cotton crop and yarn and increasing mark-up rate. However the management is putting its best efforts to maximize company's profit and taking all measures to cope with these challenges.

The Company has shifted its product mix from manufacturing of coarse count yarn to fine count yarn. This has lead to lower cost of raw material (primarily cotton) and reduction in manpower requirements, reduction in per spindle cost through savings in energy costs as well as upto 60% savings in labour costs. This, coupled with a company-wide cost-cutting drive, is expected to provide the much needed breathing room in terms of liquidity.

Further the management of the company has entered into negotiation with the providers of debt finances for restructuring of long term and short term debt including accrued interest/mark-up thereon. The Company has proposed a re-structuring plan to enable the Company to maintain its going concern status, which is the only WIN-WIN situation for all of the stake holders. During the current year the company successfully negotiated the restructuring/ rescheduling facility agreement with the Bank of Punjab whereby the bank has converted all overdue borrowings and interest thereon into a two long term financing facilities and has also allowed grace periods of upto 18 months from the reporting date. Further restructuring / rescheduling agreement with Faysal Bank has been finalized in principal and is in the process of final approval. Rounds of negotiations for debt restructuring with National Bank of Pakistan are also in process and the management expects to secure a favourable deal soon. The management is confident that it will be able to secure a reasonable arrangement with other bank of principal repayment in 20 semi-annual installment with three (3) years grace period, which will relieve the Company of its liquidity crises and ultimately the profitability of the Company will increase.

Capital Expenditures

The Company sold out/ discarded 18 doubling and twisting machines and installed 9 second hand ring machines by spending Rs. 40.256 million and spent Rs. 6.449 million on power house on major overhauling of machinery.



Dividend

Due to Loss of the company and circumstances discussed above, the Board of Directors has not recommended divided for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Related Parties

The transactions between the related parties were made at arm's length prices determined in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled prices method. The company has fully complied with the best practices of the transfer pricing as contained in the listing regulation of Pakistan Stock exchanges. On recommendation of audit committee the Board has approved related party transactions and transfer pricing policy in line with Company's Act. 2017, the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations 2017 and Companies Related Parties Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records Regulations, 2018, in its meeting held on February 26, 2019.

Financial Statements Audit and Auditors Report

The auditors of the Company have modified their repot and issued an adverse opinion on the following matters:

- 1- Bankers of the Company have not responded to auditors' request for direct confirmation debt finances amounting to Rs. 1,337.847 million and accrued interest thereon amounting to Rs. 265.8 million.
- 2- Outstanding principal and accrued interest pertaining to various short term borrowings reported in the annexed financial statements are not in agreement with responses to auditors' requests for direct confirmation from the bankers of the Company. As a result, current liabilities as at June 30, 2020 are understated by Rs. 2.87 million and Rs. 15.746 million on account of outstanding principal and accrued interest respectively.
- 3- The Company was unable to make timely repayments of long term finances and interest thereon. As a result, the Company breached provisions of long term financing agreements with MCB Bank Limited (see note 11.2), National Bank of Pakistan (see note 11.3) and Habib Bank Limited (see note 11.5) whereby the entire liability under these agreements has become payable on demand. International Accounting Standard 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' requires that if an entity breaches a provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand, it classifies the liability as current. However,

- the Company continues to classify these finances as non-current liabilities. Had these been classified as current liabilities, the total current liabilities of the Company as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs. 208.159 million.
- 4- Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party, has not responded to auditors' request for direct confirmation for transactions and balances amounting to Rs. 363.642 million and Rs. 212.728 million respectively.
- 5- The Company has presented extracts of the financial position and performance of Hira Terry Mills Limited, an associate, on the basis of financial statements that are neither audited nor authenticated by the Board of Directors of the Associate
- 6- The Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 66.415 million and loss after tax of Rs. 303.789 million during the year ended June 30, 2020. As at June 30, 2020, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,799.701 million. Its current liabilities exceed current assets by Rs. 960.179 million. The Company has not been able to make timely repayments of its debt finances and interest thereon. The providers of debt finances have filed recovery suits against the Company for Rs. 1,775.437 million. All short term borrowing facilities availed by the Company stand expired. These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty that raises doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the Company may not be able to discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business. We consider that in the absence of any favourable settlement with the providers of debt finances, related party, ability to obtain further financing and revival of its operations, the Company may not be able to settle its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business. Consequently, the use of going concern assumption in the preparation of annexed financial statements is not appropriate and adjustments may be required to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

We give below our opinion on the qualified matters;

1- Due to long overdue liabilities outstanding in banks and the Company's account has been shifted to bank's SAM department/or in the court. Normally banks never respond to the direct confirmation request from the auditors.



- 2- The differences in the amount of interest due is because of the fact that the bank is accruing interest at rates as per financing agreements whereas the Company has recognized interest at the banks cost of funds because as pre prevailing laws the Bank can charge interest only upto the bank's cost of funds as certified by SBP from time to time. Therefore, the Company has recognized the liability only to the extent of cost of funds.
- 3- The recovery of these finances is subjudice to Lahore High Court. The management intends to carry out restructuring negotiations with these bankers the results of which cannot be ascertained at this stage. Accordingly, the management has classified these liabilities as non-current.
- 4- The annexed financial statements have been prepared, ongoing concern basis, based on the following:
 - a. The management of the company has entered into negotiation with the providers of debt finances for restructuring of long term and short term debt including accrued interest thereon. The management successfully negotiated restructuring of short term debt and lease liabilities, including accrued interest thereon with the Bank of Punjab, whereby liabilities amounting to Rs. 229.453 million was converted into long term finance with a grace period upto December 2021 and accrued interest amounting to Rs. 10.899 million was converted into interest free long term finance with repayments commencing from December 2026. A restructuring / rescheduling agreement with Faysal Bank Limited has been finalized in principal and is in the process of final approval. The management is confident that it will be able to secure a reasonable arrangement. Further, rounds of negotiations for debt restructuring with National Bank of Pakistan are also in process and the management expects to secure a favourable deal soon.
 - b. The management is vigorously contesting the recovery suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the Company has filed countersuits claiming and aggregate recovery of 3,053.244 million.
 - c. The Company has continued financial support of its directors and sponsors. Upto June 30, 2020, the directors and sponsors of the Company has provided financial support amounting to Rs. 531.44 million.
 - d. The Company has shifted its product mix from manufacturing of coarse count yarn to fine count yarn. This will lead to lower cost of raw material

(primarily cotton) and reduction in manpower requirements, reduction in per spindle cost through savings in energy costs as well as upto 60% savings in labour costs. This, coupled with a company-wide cost-cutting drive, is expected to provide the much needed breathing room in terms of liquidity.

ISO 9001 - 2008 Certification

The company continues to operate the high standard of quality and had obtained latest version of certification, which is renewed every year. The quality control certification will help to build up trust of new and old customers.

Environments, Health and Safety

The Company maintains safe working conditions without risk to the health of all employees and public at large. The management has maintained safe environment in all its operations throughout the year and is constantly upgrading their living facilities.

Future Plans

Although the performance of the company is not satisfactory during the year and the future market situation is changing to adversely due to decrease in the yarn prices. The management is formulating multi-dimensional strategy to tackle all these issues. We are focusing on diversification of our product range along with value addition and consolidating our efforts on quality improvements.

Corporate & Financial Reporting Frame Work

As required by the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors are pleased to report that:

- The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its true state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
- ii. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
- iii. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
- iv. International Finance Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of financial statements. Any departures therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained.
- v. The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
- vi. There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.



- vii. Operating and financial data and key ratio of six years are annexed.
- viii. The value of investment of contributory provident fund as at June 30, 2020 amount to Rs. 6.519 Million.
- ix. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2020 is annexed.
- No trade in the shares of the company were carried out by Directors, CEO, CFO, Company secretary, their spouses and minor children, during year 2019-2020.

Board Meeting

During the year under review Eight (6) meetings were held. Attendance by each Director is as follows:

Name of Director	Attendance
Mrs. Shahnaz Umar	5 (Five)
Mr. Mohammad Mahboob	6 (Six)
Mrs. Mohammad Tariq	6 (Six)
Mrs. Sadiya Umair	5 (Five)
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik - Independent Director	4 (Four)
Mr. Saeed Ahmed Khan	6 (Six)
Mrs. Zainab Malik - Independent Director appointed on 25-10-2019	2 (Two)

Leave of absence was granted to Directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance with the code of corporate governance has established an audit committee which is fully functional. The committee comprises three members. Chairman of the committee is an Independent non-executive director. During the year four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Director is as follows.

Name of Director	Attendance
Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman)	4 (Four)
Mr. Muhammad Tariq	4 (Four)
Mrs. Zainab Malik Appointed in place ofMr. Mohammad Saeed	2 (Two)

Human Resource Committee

In compliance with the code of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors has constituted a Human Resource Committee (HR Committee) whose members consist of three Directors of whom two are non-executive directors appointed by the Board of Directors. During the year one (1) meetings of HR committee of the Board were held attendance by each Director is as follows:

Name of Director	Attendance
Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairman)	1 (One)
Mr. Muhammad Mahboob	1 (One)
Mrs. Sadiya Umair	1 (One)

Auditors

The present auditors Rehman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq (Chartered accountants), retire at the conclusion of the annual general meeting and being eligible and has offered themselves for reappointment for the financial year ending June 30, 2021.

Acknowledgements

Continued diligence and devotion of the staff and workers of the company and good human relations at all levels deserve acknowledgement. The Directors also wish to place on record their thanks to the bankers and other stakeholders for their continued support to the company.

On Behalf of the Board

MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR

(Director/ Chairperson)

Lahore: October 05, 2020

MOHAMMAD MAHBOOB

(Director/Chief Executive Officer)



حرا ٹیکسٹائل ملزلمیٹٹر

ممبران کے لیئے ڈائر بکٹرز کی رپورٹ

بورڑآ ف ڈائر کیٹرز کمپنی کے سالانہ 30 جون 202 وکٹم ہونے والے سال کے لئے نظر ٹانی شدہ مالیاتی حسابات اوراس پرآ ڈیٹرز کی رپورٹ پیش کرتے ہوئے خوشی محسوں کرتے ہیں ۔ کوڈ آف کارپوریٹ گورننس کے تحت کمپنی کے حسابات تصدیق شدہ منحانب چیف ایگزیکٹو آفیسراور چیف فنانشل آفیسراور جسکی بورڈ آڈٹ کمپٹی نے سفارش کی اور بورڈ آف ڈائریکٹرزنے پیش کرنے کی احازت دی۔

سمپنی کی کارکر دگی:

کمپنی کے آپریٹنگ مالیاتی نتائج درج ذیل ہیں:۔

	سال <u>202</u> 0ء	سال <u>201</u> 9ء
	ملین روپیے	ملين روپي
فروخت	1,463.3742	2,645.989
مجموعی(نقصان)	(66.415)	(1,061.512)
حراثیری کے (نقصان) امنافع کا حصہ	(68.867)	(567.992)
قبل از ٹیکس (نقصان)	(291.199)	(1,859.805)
ثي <i>ي</i> س	(12.590)	156.159
بعداز ٹیکس (نقصان)/منافع	(303.789)	(2,015.842)
فی شیئر (نقصان)/ آمدنی (EPS)	(3.51)	(23.28)

کمپنی کی فروخت آمدن میں 40 فیصد کمی کی بڑی وجہ فیصل آباد کی سوتر منڈی میں دھاگے کی طلب میں مندی اور کرونا۔19 کی عالمی دہائی بیاری ہے۔جس نے ٹیکٹائل کی صنعت کے ساتھ کمپنی کے کاروبار پر بُری طرح سےاثر ڈالا ہے۔ ہماری کمپنی نے ان مشکل حالات کا سامنا کیا۔ جہاں ہمیں ل کولقریۂ دو ماہ کے عرصہ جو کہ 24 مارچ 2020ء سے 12 مئی 2020ء تک لازمی بندر کھنا ،سیل آرڈر کی منسوخی ،سیلائی چین میں خلل اوراس وباء کے پھیلاؤ کے مشکل خطرہ کا سامنا کرنا پڑا۔ لاک ڈاؤن کے دوران کمپنی کوآمدن کی مدمیں 180ملین کا خسارہ ہوا۔ کمپنی کی انتظامیہ اپنے بچھلے سال کے نقصانات۔84۔ 2015 ملین روپے سے گھٹا کراس سال303 ملین رویے تک لانے میں کامیاب رہی ہے۔اخراجات میں مؤثر کی اورا پنی مصنوعات میں تبدیلی کے نتیجہ میں مجموعی نقصان 40.12 فیصد سے کم ہوکر 50.4 فیصد ہو گیا ہے۔ فی شیئر نقصان پچھلے سال کے23.28 روپے سے کم ہوکر 3.51 روپے ہو گیا ہے۔

او پر دیئے گے عوال کی وجہ سے کمپنی کوشدید مالی بحران کا سامنا ہے اور اس وجہ سے کمپنی اپنے قرضہ جات اور مارک اپ کی بروقت ادائیگی نہ کرسکی۔ جاربینکوں نے کمپنی کے خلاف عدم ادائیگی کی وجہ سے لاہور ہائی کورٹ میں کیسر بھی کردیئے میں۔اس طرح کمپنی نے بھی ان چار بیٹکول پرریکوری کلیم کے کیسز لا ہور ہائی کورٹ میں کئے ہیں۔

کمپنی انتظامیر کوآنے والےسال میں دھاگے کی مانگ میں کی اورمسلسل بڑھتی ہوئی پیداواری لاگت نیز کیاس کی بڑھتی ہوئی قیمتیں اور کیاس کی بیداوار کی غیریقینی کیفیت اور دھاگے کی غیریقینی قیمتوں کی دجہ سے خت سال دکھائی دے رہاہے۔ تاہم انتظامیہ اپنی تمام صلاحیت بروئے کارلاتے ہوئے کمپنی کے منافع میں بہتری کیلیے کوشاں ہے۔

کمپنی نے اپنی مصنوعات کوموٹے دھاگے سے باریک دھاگے میں تنبریل کرلیا ہے جس کی وجہ سے خام مال کی قیمت میں کمی اور مز دوروں کی تعداداور% 60اخراجات میں کمی ، فی سپنڈل اخراجات میں کمی کے ساتھو، بجلی کی لاگت میں بھی کمی واقع ہوگی اور یوں کمپنی اینے اخراجات میں کمی کی بدولت اپنے مالیاتی بحران پر قابویا نے کے لئے پرامید ہے۔

مزید ریر کہپنی کی اتظامیہ کمپنی کوقرضہ مہیا کر نیوالوں سے طویل مدتی اور کم مدتی قرضوں کی ادائیگیوں کی بشمول سود/مارک اپ کی ادائیگ منصوبہ پیش کیا ہے تا کہ کمپنی اپنی رواں دواں صلاحیت کو قائم دائم رکھ سکے اور بہی تمام لوگوں کے لئے کامیابی کی ضانت ہے۔اس سال کے دوران کمپنی کا پنجاب بینک سے قرضوں کی ری سٹر کچرنگ کامعامدہ ہوگیا ہے جس کے مطابق بینک نے اپنے قابل اوااصل ذراور سود کو دوطویل مدتی قرضوں میں بدل دیا ہے اور اٹھارہ ماہ کی رعایتی مدت بھی دی ہے۔ اسی طرح فیصل بینک کے ساتھ بھی ری سٹر کچرنگ کے معاملات طے یا گئے ہیں اور یہ بینک کے ذمہ داران کے پاس منظوری کے مرحلے میں ہیں۔مزید بران نیشنل بینک آف پاکتان کے ساتھ بھی ریسٹر کچرنگ پر ندا کرات کے ٹی دور ہو چکے ہیں اور کمپنی امپد کرتی ہے کہ بینک سے ایک سازگارمعاہدہ طے پاجائے گا۔ انظامیہ یوری طرح مطمئن ہے کہ وہ باتی بینکوں کے ساتھ معقول انظامات کے تحت جو کہ اصل زرکو20 آ دھ سالہ اقساط بشمول 3 سالہ رعایتی مدت میں ادائیکیوں پرمشمل ہے اور بیہ کمپنی کواس کے(Liquidity) کیکوڈ ٹی بحرانوں سے نحات دلائے گااور بالاخر کمپنی کے منافع میں اضافیہ ہوگا۔



كيپيل اخراجات:

سمینی نے اس سال 18 عدد دھا گےکوڈیل اورٹوئسٹ کرنے والی مشینوں کوفر وخت کر دیا ہے اور 9 عدد پرانی اچھی حالت کی دگا گہ بنانے والی مشینیں لگا دی میں بے ن کی لاگت 40.256 ملین روپے ہے اس کے علاو 6.449 ملین رویے یاور ہاؤس کی اوور ہالنگ کی مدمیں خرچ کیے ہیں۔

منافع منقسمه:

بوردْ آف ڈائر کیٹرز نے مختمہ سال30 جون2020ء کیلئے تمپنی کے نقصان میں ہونے کی بناء پرکوئی منافع تجویز نہیں کیا۔

متعلقه پارٹیز:

متعلقہ پارٹیوں کے درمیان لین دین قابل رسائی قیمتیں مقرر کر کے کیا گیا۔ کمپنی پاکستان اسٹاک ایجینج کی لسٹنگ ضا بطے میں موجود قیمتوں کے بہترین طریقوں رعمل پیرا ہے۔ آڈٹ کمیٹی کی شفارشات پر بورڑ نے متعلقہ پارٹیوں کے درمیان لین دین قابل رسائی قیمتوں کے قعین کے بارے میں کھینیزا کیٹ 2017 اسٹیڈ کوڈ آف میٹنینٹس آف ریلیپڈر ایکارڈ ریگولیشنز 2018ء کی رہنمائی کی روشنی میں تباد لے کی قیمتوں کے بارے میں پالیسی کی منظوری اپنے اجلاس منعقدہ26 فرورکو 2019ء میں دی ہے۔

مالى حسابات كا آ دُث اورآ دُيٹرز كى ريورث:

تمپنی کے مالی حسابات پر آڈیٹرزنے اپنی رپورٹ کچھ تبدیلیوں کے ساتھ درج ذیل امور کے بارے میں اپنامنفی نقط نظر دیا ہے۔

1- تمپنی کے بیئرز نے48. 1337 ملین روپے واجب الا دااوراصل زراور265.80 ملین روپے سود کی مدمین مالی واجبات کی آڈیٹرز کو براہ راست نصدیق نہیں کی اور نہ ہی کوئی جواب دیا ہے۔

2- واجب الادااصل زراورسود کی جورقم ان مالی حسابات میں دی گئی ہے وہ کمپنی کے بینکرز کی طرف ہے واجب الادااصل زر کی مدمیں 15.746 ملین روپے اور سود کی مدمیں 2.87ملین روپے رواں سال میں ادائیگیوں کی مدمیں کم دکھائی گئی ہے۔

3- سمپنی MCB بینک بیشنل بینک اور حبیب بینک کو بروقت آ دائیگیان نہیں کرسکی جس کی وجہ سے معاہدہ کے مطابق اب ریتمام ادائیگیاں فوری طور پر کرنا ہوں گی۔اس سلسلہ میں انٹریشنل اکاؤنٹنگ سٹینڈ رڈ۔ 1 (مالی حسابات کو پیش کرنا) کے متعلق بیان کرتا ہے کہا گر کوئی ادارہ دورانِ سال کسی بھی وقت طویل مدتی ادائیگی کے معاہدے کوتو ڑتا ہےتو بیطویل مدتی واجب الا داادائیگیاں فوری طور پر کرنا ہوں گی اوراسے روال مدتی ذمه داری تصور کیا جائیگا۔تا ہم کمپنی اس رقم کوطویل مدتی واجب الادا ادائیکیوں میں شار کرتی ہے۔اگر ان طویل مدتی واجب الادا ادائیکیوں کو رواں مدتی واجب الادا ادائیکیوں میں شار کیا جائے تو 30 جون 2020ء وختم ہونے والے سال میں 208.15 ملین روپے کی رقم رواں واجب الا داادا ئیگیوں کی مدمیس زیادہ ہوگی۔

4- تعلق دار کمپنی حراثیری نے363.64 ملین کے کاروبار او 212.728 ملین کے بیلنس کے متعلق آڈیٹرز کو براہ راست کوئی جوابنہیں دیا ہے۔

5- کمپنی نے تعلق دار کمپنی کا نفع ونقصان اور دیگر جامع آمدن کا حقیہ اپنے حساب کتاب میں شار کیا ہے وہ نیتو آ ڈٹ شدہ ہے اور نہ ہی کمپنی کے بور ڈ آف ڈ ائر یکٹر زسے تصدیق شدہ ہیں۔

6- تحمینی نے30 جون2<u>02</u>0 ء کوختم ہونے والے سال کے دوران مجموعی نقصان 415. 66 ملین رویے اور بعداز ٹیکس نقصان 87. 303 ملین رویے ظاہر کیا ہے۔ تمپنی کے کل نقصان کی رقم اس مدت تک 1799.70 ملین رویے ہو چکاہے۔اسکے موجودہ واجبات اسکے موجودہ اثاثہ جات سے960.179ملین رویے ذیادہ ہیں جس کی وجہ سے کمپنی اپناسود/مارک آپ اورایئے قرضہ جات کی ٹائم پرادائیگیاں نہ کرسکی سکمپنی وقر ضدمہیا کرنے والوں نے کمپنی سے1775.437 ملین رویے کی وصولی کے لئے کیسز ز داخل کر دیئے ہیں۔اورتمام رواں مدتی قرض کی سہولیات ختم ہو چکی ہیں۔ ہوکین کے رواں دواں ہونے برشبہات کو جنم دے رہے ہیں اور کمپنی ان ادائیگیوں کے معمول کے کاروباری حالات میں ادا کرنے کی صلاحیت نہیں رکھتی۔ ہم سجھتے ہیں کہ کمپنی قرضہ دینے والے اداروں سے معاملات طے کیے بغیرا پنامعمول کا کاروبار جاری ر کھنے اور اپنے کاروباری آپریشنز کو بحال رکھنے کے قابل نہ ہوگ ۔

آڈیٹرز کے اعتراضات برہم اپنادرج ذیل نقطہ نظر پیش کرتے ہیں۔

1- بینکوں کے بقایا جات کی عدم ادا کیگی کی بنالیمپنی کے صابات بینکوں کے (SAM) نامی ادارے یا کورٹ میں منتقل کردئے ہیں۔عام طور پر بینک ایسے معملات میں آڈیٹرز کو براہ راست کوئی جواب نہیں دیتے ۔ 2- سود میں فرق کی وجہ رہے کے بینک نے مالیاتی معاہدہ کےمطابق سود کا حساب بنایا ہے جبکہ کمپنی نے بینک کی کاسٹ آف فنڈ کےمطابق سود کو ثنار کیا ہے۔ جو کہ ٹلیٹ بینک آف یا کستان کےرواں سال کے مروجہ قانون کےمطابق ہےاور بینک کی کاسٹ آف فنڈکی حد تک ممینی نے اسے شارکیا ہے۔

3- بینکول کی ریکوری سے متعلق معاملات لا مور ہائی کورٹ میں چل رہے ہیں۔انتظامیہ پینکول سے ریسٹر کچرنگ سے متعلق ندا کرات کررہی ہےاوراس مرحلہ پران فدا کرات کے نتائج کا تعین نہیں کیا جاسکتا اوراس طرح تمینی نے ان واجبات کوطویل مدتی واجبات کی مدمیں لیاہے۔

4-روال دوال صلاحيت كوقائم ركھنے كے لئے درج ذيل اقدامات كئے جارہے ہيں۔

الف کمپنی کی اتظامیہ کمپنی کوقر ضہمہیا کر نیوالوں سے طویل مدتی اور کم مدتی قرضوں کی ادائیگیوں کی ہثمول سود /مارک اپ کی ادائیگی کے سلسلہ میں بات جے کررہی ہے اس سلسلے میں کمپنی کی انتظامیہ نے بینک آف پنجاب کے ساتھ کامیاب ندا کرات کے ذریعے اپنے قرضوں کی ریسٹر کچرنگ کرائی ہے جس کے مطابق کم مدتی قرضوں کی رقم229.453 ملین روپے کوطویل مدتی قرض میں بدل دیاہے جس میں رعایتی مدت



دسمبر1 202ء تک کی دی گئی ہےاور10.89 ملین رویے کے سود کو بغیر سود طویل مدتی قرض میں بدل دیا ہےاوراسکی ادائیگی دیمبر<u>6 20</u>2ء سے شروع ہوگی۔ای طرح فیصل بینک کے ساتھ بھی قرض کی ریسٹر پچرنگ کے معاملات اصولی طور پر طے یا گئے ہیں اور معاہدہ منظوری کے مرحلہ میں ہے۔مزید برآ کنیشنل بینک آف یا کشان کے ساتھ مذاکرات کے گئی دور ہو چکے ہیں اور انتظامیہ امید کرتی ہے کہ بینک سے ایک سازگار معامدہ جلدیا ہے جمیل کو پہنچے گا۔

ب۔ سمپنی اپنی پوری ذمدداری کے ساتھ قرضہ دینے والے اداروں کی طرف سے دائز کردہ کیسر کواڑ رہی ہے۔ مزید کمپنی نے بھی ان بینکوں کے خلاف 3053.244 ملین کی ریکوری کے کیسر دائز کیے ہیں۔ پ۔ کمپنی کواسکے ڈائر کیٹرز اور سپونسرز کی طرف ہے قرض کی شکل میں مسلسل مد دجاری ہے۔30 جون <u>202</u>0ء تک اسکے ڈائر کیٹرز اسپونسرز نے طویل اور قلیل مدتی قرضوں کی صورت میں 531.58 ملین رویے کمپنی کودیے اس قرضددیے والے ان ڈائر یکٹرز اسپورٹرزنے قرض پرسود امارک اپ ہمیشہ معاف کیا ہے۔

ج کمپنی نے اپنی مصنوعات کوموٹے دھاگے سے باریک دھاگے میں تبدیل کرلیاہے جس کی وجہ سے خام مال کی قیت کی اورمز دوروں کی تعدا داور% 60اخراجات میں کی ۔ فی سینڈل اخراجات میں کی کے ساتھ ۔ بجلی کی لاگت میں بھی کمی واقع ہوگی اور یوں کمپنی اینے اخراجات میں کمی کی بدولت اپنے مالیاتی بحران پر قابویا نے کے لئے پرامید ہے۔

آئی ایس ا9001:900 کی سرتیفیکیشن:

سمپنی کوالٹی کے اعلی معیار پر کام جاری رکھتی ہے اور سرٹیفکیشن کا ورژن حاصل کر بچل ہے۔ کوالٹی کنٹر ول سرٹیفکیٹس سے نئے اور پرانے گا کہوں کا اعتاد تعمیر کرنے میں مدولتی ہے۔

ماحول صحت اورتخفظ:

سمینی اپنے ملاز مین اورعوام کی صحت کے لیئے خطرات سے بیخنے کے لئے مخفوظ کام کے حالات کو برقر اررکھتی ہے۔انتظامیہ نے سال بھراپنی تمام کاروائیوں میں محفوظ ماحول کو برقر اررکھا ہے اورمسلسل ان کی حفاظت اورزندگی کی سہولیات کو بہتر بنایا ہے۔

مستقبل کے منصوبے:

اگر چیکینی کی کارگردگی سال کے دوران اطمینان بخشنہیں رہی کیکن منڈی کی صورتحال دھاگے کی قیمتوں میں کمی کی دجہ سے حوصلدافزانہیں ہے انتظامیہ نے اس صورتحال سے نمٹنے کے لئے ہمہ جہتی تدابیراختیار کرنے کا منصوبہ بنایا ہے۔ہمانی پوری توجیا بنی پیداوار کو ویلیوایڈیشن پیداوار میں تبدیل کرنے اور کواٹی میں بہتری لانے پر مامور کئے ہوئے ہیں۔ کمپنی نے اس سال کے دوران نٹی مصنوعات کومتعارف کرانے کامنصوبہ بنایا

کار پوریٹ گورنس کے ضابطہ کی عمیل:

بورڈ آ ف کارپوریٹ گورننس کے تحت کمپنی کے ڈائر یکٹر زرپورٹ پیش کرنے میں خوشی محسوں کرتے ہیں۔

کار بوریٹ گورننس کےضابطہ کے مطابق ،ڈائر بکٹرز بحوثی بیان کرتے ہیں:

i- کمپنی کی انتظامیه کی طرف سے تیار کردہ ، مالیاتی حسابات ،اس کے امور ، آپریشنز کے نتائج ، نقذی بہاؤاورا یکوئی میں تبدیلیوں کومنصفانہ طور بر ظاہر کرتا ہے۔

ii- كميني كے كھاتہ جات بالكل صحيح طور سے بنائے گئے ہيں۔

iii- مالی حسابات کی تیاری میں مناسب"ا کا وُنٹنگ پالیسیوں" کوشلسل کے ساتھ لا گوکیا گیا ہے اورا کا وُنٹنگ کے تخیینہ جات مناسب اور دانشمندانہ فیصلوں بیٹنی ہیں۔

vi- مالی حسابات کی تیاری میں یا کستان میں لا گومین الاقوامی مالیاتی رپورٹنگ(IFRS) کے معیارات کی بیروی کی گئی ہے،اور کسی بھی انخراف کا موزوں انکشاف اوروضاخت کی گئی ہے۔

۷- "اندرونی کنٹرول" کے نظام کاڈیزاین مشحکم ہےاوراسکی موئٹر طریقے سے عملدرآ مداورنگرانی کی جاتی ہے۔

iv کمپنی کے رواں دواں ہونے کی صلاحیت برکوئی قابل ذکر شکوک وشبہات نہیں ہیں۔

iiv گزشته چیسال کاکلیدی آپریٹنگ اور مالیاتی شاریات منسلک ہے۔

iiiv كنٹرى پيعٹرى پر ڈايوڈنٹ فنڈ كى ماليت 30 جون 2<u>00</u>2ء كے خاتمہ پر 6.519 ملين رويے رہى۔

xi - 30 جون2020ء کوشئیر ہولڈنگ کا پیٹرن مسلک ہے۔

x- مالی سال کے اختتا م پر کمپنی مالی حالت کومتاثر کرنے والی کوئی منفی مادی تبدیلیاں اور وعد ہے جن کا تعلق اس بیلنس شیٹ سے ہووتوع پذیز نہیں ہوہ ہیں۔

ix - 2019-2020 کمپنی کے قصص میں اس کے ڈائر کیٹرزی کا اور کی ایف اور کمپنی سیکرٹری اور ان کے زوج اور نابالغ بچوں کی طرف سے کوئی تجارت نہیں کی گئی ہے۔

بورڈ آف ڈائر یکٹرز کے اجلاس:

ز برجائزہ سال کے دوران بورڈ آف ڈائر یکٹرز کے جیواجلاس منعقد ہوئے ہرڈائر یکٹر کی حاضری درج ذیل ہے۔



نام	تعداد حاضري
مىزشەہنادعر 5 ((હુંા) 5
مح محبوب	(_{zz}) 6
محمه طارق	(_v) 6
مسز سعد بيغير	(غُرِي) 5
شوكت نذىرىملك (آزاد ڈائر يکٹر)	4 (چار)
سعيداحمرخان	(_{zz}) 6
	(,,) 2

جوڈائر کیٹرز بورڈ کے چنداجلاسوں پر حاضر نہ ہو سکےان کی غیر حاضر کی کوچھٹی قر اردیا گیا۔

ىر 1 ۋەشىمىيىي:

کار پوریٹ گورننس کےضابطہ کی فٹیل میں بورڈ آف ڈائر کیٹرنے آڈٹ کمیٹی تشکیل دی ہے جو کہ کمل طور پر کام کررہی ہے۔ کمیٹی تین ممبران پرمشتمل ہے۔

سمیٹی کے چیئر مین ایک آزاد ڈائر میٹر میں دوران سال آ دئے کمیٹی کے حیار اجلاس منعقد ہوئے ہر ڈائر میٹر کی حاضری درج ذیل ہے۔

	<u> </u>
ڈائز یکٹرکانام	حا <i>ضر</i> ی
جناب شوكت نذير ملك	4 (چار)
جنا <i>ب محم</i> طارق	4 (چار)
مسززينب ملك	2 (دو) محرسعید کی جگه تعینات ہوئیں۔

هومن ريسورس كميثي:

کوڈ آف کارپوریٹ گورننس کی تعیل کرتے ہوئے بورڈ آف ڈائر میٹرنے ایک ہیومن ریبورس کمیٹی تشکیل دی ہے جو کہ تین ممبران پڑشتمل ہے جس میں دوڈ ائر میٹر نان ایگزیکٹو ہیں۔دوران سال ہیومن ریبورس کمیٹی

کاایک اجلاس منعقد ہوا۔ ہر ڈائر یکٹر کا حاضری درج ذیل ہے۔

, 0, 0,	
ڈائر یکٹر کانام	حا <i>ضر</i> ی
محتر مدسعد رينميسر	1 (ایک)
محتر مدزينب ملك	1 (ایک)
محتر م محمد طارق	1 (ایک)

آڈیٹرز:

موجودہ آڈیٹرزمیسرزرحمان سرفرازرحیم اقبال رفیق ۔ چارٹرڈا کاونٹس یٹائر ہوگئے ہیں اوراہل ہونے کی بناءیر مالی سال جون1 <u>202</u>ء کے تقرر کیلیےخود کوپیش کرتے ہیں۔

اعتراف:

سمپنی کے عملےاور کارکنان کی مسلسل محنت اور جذبہاور تمام سطحوں پراچھے تعلقات کااعتراف کرتے ہیں۔ڈائر یکٹرز بینکرز اور دیگر حصہ داروں کا بھی نمپنی کی مسلسل حمایت پرشکریہا داکرتے ہیں۔

(ڈائزیکٹر اچیئرین)

لا ہور۔5ا کوبر2020ء

(ڈائر کیٹر / چیف ایگزیکٹو آفیسر)



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

						Amount Rs.(000)
_	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
Net Sales	1,463,374	2,645,989	2,171,757	3,361,275	3,523,396	4,061,800
Cost of Sales	(1,529,789)	(3,707,501)	(2,325,426)	(3,106,262)	(3,188,731)	(3,587,519)
Gross profit	(66,415)	(1,061,512)	(153,669)	255,013	334,666	474,281
Administration Expenses	(42,630)	(35,938)	(47,838)	(53,669)	(63,862)	(76,844)
Selling Expences	(36)	(2,893)	(12,364)	(41,175)	(36,677)	(50,039)
Operating Profit	(109,081)	(1,100,343)	(213,872)	160,169	234,127	347,398
Other Operating Income	45,920	30,229	3,327	876	5,715	801
Profit before Interest & Taxation	(63,161)	(1,070,114)	(210,545)	161,045	239,842	348,199
Other Operating Expenses	(415)	(763)	(14)	(207)	(1,596)	(5,956)
Financial & Other Charges	(166,352)	(220,936)	(205,016)	(219,556)	(228,410)	(270,151)
Notional interest	7,597	-	-	-	-	-
Share of profit Hira Terry Mills Ltd.	(68,868)	(567,992)	(124,970)	102,676	91,565	78,303
Profit before Taxation	(291,199)	(1,859,805)	(540,544)	43,958	101,400	150,395
Provision for Taxation	(12,590)	(156,037)	(6,425)	(36,503)	(7,862)	(58,057)
Profit after Taxation (Net Profit)	(303,789)	(2,015,842)	(546,969)	7,456	93,537	92,338
Financial Position						
Current Assets	815,828	1,164,764	2,257,623	2,627,405	2,255,468	2,340,097
Current Liabilities	1,776,007	2,459,510	2,280,329	2,951,446	2,464,531	2,428,841
Operating Fixed Assets	2,295,738	2,380,082	2,506,220	2,545,357	2,574,458	2,083,750
Right of Use	62,260	66,459	2,300,220	2,343,337	2,374,436	2,063,730
Total Assets	3,221,975	3,713,199	5,434,614	5,967,465	5,514,606	5,021,274
Net Capital Employed	1,884,871	1,718,746	3,662,236		3,050,075	2,592,433
Long Term Debts	1,141,249	1,122,338	1,127,709	3,545,253 426,044	466,125	589,701
Share Holder,s Equity	68,982	(97,439)	1,947,860	2,497,864	1,945,237	1,852,817
Surplus on Revaluation on Fixed Assets	438,903	465,057	507,951	529,235	451,377	65,893
Break -up Value Per Share (Rupees)	0.80	•	22.50	28.85	22.47	23.54
Number of shares	86,577,920	(1.13) 86,577,920	86,577,920	86,577,920	86,577,920	78,707,200
Financial Ratios Analysis (Annualized)						
Current Ratio	0.46	0.47	0.99	0.89	0.92	0.96
Total Debt to Total Assets	35.42	30.23	20.75	7.14	8.45	11.74
Acid -Test Ratio	27.03	35.31	15.98	16.55	17.26	17.59
Debt Equity	94:06	110:(10)	37:63	15:85	19:81	24:76
Debt Coverage Ratio	(0.31)	(3.82)	(0.93)	0.46	0.94	1.08
Leverage Ratio	45.71	(39.11)	1.79	1.39	1.83	1.71
Interest Coverage Ratio	2.75	9.42	3.64	0.80	1.44	1.56
Fixed Assets Turnover	0.62	1.08	0.87	1.32	1.37	1.95
Total Assets Turnover	0.45	0.71	0.40	0.56	0.64	0.81
Per Share Results & returns						
Earning per Share	(3.51)	(23.28)	(6.32)	0.09	1.08	1.15
Return on Capital employed- net	(16.12)	(117.29)	(14.94)	0.21	3.07	3.56
Gross Profit to Sales	-4.54	-40.12	-7.08	7.59	9.50	11.68
Operating Profit To Sales	(7.45)	(41.59)	(9.85)	4.77	6.64	8.55
Net Income to Sale (Profit margin)	(20.76)	(76.18)	(25.19)	0.22	2.65	2.27
Return on Assets (ROA)	(9.43)	(54.29)	(10.06)	0.12	1.70	1.84



INFORMATION UNDER CLAUSE XVI(J) OF THE CODE **CORPORATE GOVERNANCE** As at June 30, 2020

Description	Shares Held	%
Director, Chief Executive Officer, and their		
Spouse, and minor children.		
MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR	5,725,854	6.6135
MR. MOHAMMAD MAHBOOB	500	0.0006
MRS. SADIYA UMAIR	5,637,933	6.5120
MR. MOHAMMAD TARIQ	500	0.0006
MRS. ZAINAB MALIK (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)	500	0.0006
MR. SAEED AHMED KHAN	2,420	0.0028
MR. SHAUKAT NAZIR MALIK (INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR)	967	0.0011
	11,368,674	13.13
Associated Communical undentablings and valeted		
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. Adamjee Insurance Co.	-	-
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Financial Instuitions.		-
Joint Stock Cpmpanies	2,620,818	3.03
Modarabas / P.FUND	30,500	0.04
Govt. Institution	72,567	0.08
General Public	72,485,361	83.72
Local		-
Foreign	Nil	-
	86,577,920	100.00
Shareholders holding 5% or more		
MR. MUHAMMAD UMAR VIRK	23,563,258	27.22
MRS. UMAIRA OMAR	8,603,922	9.94
MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR	5,725,854	6.61
MRS. SADIYA UMAIR	5,637,933	6.51



Pattern of Shareholding As at June 30, 2020

INCORPORATION No. 0023196

FORM 34

Share Holders		Shareholding		Total
	From		То	Shares Held
144	1	-	100	4,168
223	101	-	500	95,450
309	501	-	1000	260,452
714	1001	-	5000	2,103,240
268	5001	-	10000	2,172,619
137	10001	-	15000	1,767,247
84	15001	-	20000	1,566,894
64	20001	-	25000	1,529,556
39	25001	-	30000	1,124,852
35	30001	-	35000	1,167,306
15	35001	-	40000	580,796
14	40001	-	45000	604,625
33	45001	-	50000	1,622,775
12	50001	-	55000	638,750
11	55001	-	60000	650,500
7	60001	-	65000	427,716
8	65001	-	70000	548,560
6	70001	-	75000	442,567
4	75001	-	80000	314,000
3	80001	-	85000	255,000
8	85001	-	90000	700,950
2	90001	-	95000	185,000
18	95001	-	100000	1,791,500
4	100001	-	105000	410,399
3	105001	-	110000	326,500
1	110001		115000	115,000
6	115001		120000	713,500
4	120001		125000	495,063
3	125001		135000	398,500
5 7	135001		150000	
5	160001		170000	1,020,000 828,089
2	170001		180000	350,500
9	180001	-	200000	1,784,25
2	200001	-	210000	
3	230001	-	240000	410,500
1	240001	-	270000	701,750
3		-	400000	263,500
	300001	-		1,041,500
5 7	400001 500001	_	500000 600000	2,443,500
		-		4,053,000
2	600001	-	700000	1,237,250
1	800001		900000	860,000
2	900001		1000000	1,966,000
1	1100001		1200000	1,107,02
1	1900001		2000000	1,966,602
1	2000001		5700000	5,637,93
1	5700001		5800000	5,725,85
1	5800001		3700000	8,603,922
1	8700001		1185000	11,180,180
1	11185001	12	2385000	12,383,07
2235				86,577,92



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

- 1. The total number of directors are 07 as per the following:
 - a. Male: 04 b. Female: 03
- 2. The composition of Board is as follows:
- Independent Directors: 02 as named hereunder:
 - Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik
 - ii. Mrs. Zainab Malik
- b) Non-executive Directors: 03 as named hereunder:
 - i. Mrs. Shahnaz Umar
 - ii. Mrs. Sadiya Umair
 - iii. Mr. Mohammad Tariq
- Executive Directors: 02 as named hereunder:
 - Mr. Mohammad Mahboob Chief Executive Officer
 - ii. Mr. Saeed Ahmad Khan
- d) Female Directors: 03 as named hereunder:
 - i. Mrs. Shahnaz Umar
 - ii. Mrs. Sadiya Umair
 - iii. Mrs. Zainab Malik
- 3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including this company.
- 4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
- 5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;
- 6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;
- 7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board;

- 8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;
- 9. The company has not arranged training programs for its directors during the year due to COVID-19. However, the company has planned training program for its directors in accordance with the requirements of PSX regulations. Three Directors who had completed their training had resigned and inducted new directors who have 14 years education and vast business experience in finance, accounts and corporate.
- 10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;
- 11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board;
- 12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
 - a) Audit Committee:
 - i. Mr. Shaukat Nazir Malik (Chairman)
 - ii. Mrs. Zainab Malik
 - iii. Mr. Mohammad Tariq
 - b) HR and Remuneration Committee:
 - i. Mrs. Zainab Malik (Chairperson)
 - ii. Mrs. Sadiva Umair
 - iii. Mr. Mohammad Mahboob
- 13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for compliance;
- 14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:
 - a) Audit Committee: 04 meetings held during the year ended June 30, 2020.
 - b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 01 meeting held during the year ended June 30, 2020.
- 15. The Board has set-up an effective internal Audit function. The staff is considered to be suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is fully conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;



- 15. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;
- 16. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;
- 17. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been compiled with, except as explained at Sr. 19;
- 18. The Company, currently has two elected independent directors out of total seven directors on the Board. Both the independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and execute their duties competently as per laws and regulations under which hereby fulfill the necessary requirements; therefore, not warrant the appointment of a third independent director. Accordingly, the fraction has not been rounded up as one under regulation 6(1).
- 19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except for the requirement that the position of Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary has been held by the same person. The management is of the view, that the current CFO and Company Secretary is suitably qualified and professionally capable to act and fulfill the duties and responsibilities of both the roles. In addition, it is also a cost effective measure that is in the better interest of the shareholders of the Company, therefore hiring a separate person for both position is not feasible.

For and on behalf of the Board

MRS. SHAHNAZ UMAR

L. W_ar

Lahore: October 05, 2020 (CHAIRPERSON)



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of HIRA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate **Governance) Regulations, 2019**

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ['the Regulations'] prepared by the Board of Directors of HIRA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ['the Company'] for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Reference	
Paragraph 20	As per Regulation 24, same person shall not simultaneously hold office of chief financial officer and the company secretary of a listed company. The offices of chief financial officer and company secretary are held by same person.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ **Chartered Accountants**

Lahore: October 05, 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of HIRA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of HIRA TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ['the Company'], which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the 'Basis for Adverse Opinion' section of our report, the annexed statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof do not conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the loss, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

We have not received responses to our requests for direct confirmations from bankers of the Company for debt finances amounting to Rs. 1,337.847 million and accrued interest thereon amounting to Rs. 265.8 million. We were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning these liabilities as at June 30, 2020 and the related interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2020. A material adjustment to these transactions and balances ay be required.

Outstanding principal and accrued interest pertaining to various short term borrowings reported in the annexed financial statements are not in agreement with responses to our requests for direct confirmation from the bankers of the Company. As a result, current liabilities as at June 30, 2020 are understated by Rs. 2.87 million and Rs. 15.746 million on account of outstanding principal and accrued interest respectively.

As referred to in note 11, the Company was unable to make timely repayments of long term finances and interest thereon. As a result, the Company breached provisions of long term financing agreements with MCB Bank Limited (see note 11.2), National Bank of Pakistan (see note 11.3) and Habib Bank Limited (see note 11.5) whereby the entire liability under these agreements has become payable on demand. International Accounting Standard 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' requires that if an entity breaches a provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand, it classifies the liability as current. However, the Company continues to classify these finances as non-current liabilities. Had these been classified as current liabilities, the total current liabilities of the Company as at June 30, 2020 would have been higher by Rs. 208.159 million.

We have not received response to our request for direct confirmation from Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party for transactions and balances amounting to Rs. 363.642 million and Rs. 212.728 million respectively. We were unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning these transactions and balances. A material adjustment to balances with the related party may be required.

As referred to in note 23, the Company has presented extracts of the financial position and performance of Hira Terry Mills Limited, an associate, on the basis of financial statements that are neither audited nor authenticated by the Board of Directors of the Associate. In the absence of audited/authenticated financial statements of associate we were unable to satisfy ourselves regarding these extracts.

As referred to in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 66.415 million and loss after tax of Rs. 303.789 million during the year ended June 30, 2020. As at June 30, 2020, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,799.701 million. Its current liabilities exceed current assets by Rs. 960.179 million. The Company has not been able to make timely repayments of its debt finances and interest thereon. The providers of debt finances have filed recovery suits against the



Company for Rs. 1,775.437 million. All short term borrowing facilities availed by the Company stand expired. These factors indicate existence of material uncertainty that raises doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the Company may not be able to discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business. While the Company has prepared and presented the annexed financial statements on going concern basis based on the factors explained in note 2.2, we consider that in the absence of any favourable settlement with the providers of debt finances, ability to obtain further financing and revival of its operations, the Company may not be able to settle its liabilities and realize its assets in the normal course of business. Consequently, the use of going concern assumption in the preparation of annexed financial statements is not appropriate and adjustments may be required to the amounts reported in the financial statements. The financial statements do not disclose this fact.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ['ISAs'] as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ['the Code'] and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

1. COVID-19

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible to assess the possible effects of COVID-19 on the Company's liquidity and related ability to continue as a going concern and appropriately

disclose the results of its assessment in the financial statements. The COVID-19 pandemic is an unprecedented challenge for humanity and for the economy globally, and at the date of the financial statements its effects are subject to uncertainty.

Management prepared a financial and liquidity risk analysis addressing amongst others future compliance with financing conditions as well as financing and cash requirements to ensure continuation of the Company's operations.

Refer to note 56 to the financial statements regarding the impact of COVID-19.

How our audit addressed the matter

We considered the uncertainties arising from COVID-19 in planning and performing our audit. Our procedures included:

- evaluated the Company's most recent financial results forecasts and liquidity analysis underlying their going concern assessment and tested the integrity of the forecasts, including mathematical accuracy;
- assessed the reliability of the forecasted cash flows by comparing with the historical performance and market expectations;
- discussed the most recent forecast with management to understand their views on going concern and the potential impact of COVID-19 on the Company;
- evaluated the assumptions in respect of projected available future cash flows from operating, financing and investing activities and projected key ratios for covenant calculations;
- inspected supporting documentation such as contracts and underlying calculations and correspondence with financing and other relevant parties;
- evaluated the Company's assessment of other accounting estimates within the financial statements which could be impacted by the challenging economic environment resulting from COVID-19, including trade receivables and inventory provisioning;



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the matter

and considered the appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial statements in respect of the potential impact of COVID-19.

2. Inventory valuation

Stock in trade amounts to Rs 288,798 million as at the reporting date. The valuation of stock in trade at cost has different components, which includes judgment in relation to the allocation of labour and overheads which are incurred in bringing the stock to its present location and condition. Judgment has also been applied by management in determining the Net Realizable Value ['NRV'] of stock in trade.

The estimates and judgments applied by management are influenced by the amount of direct costs incurred historically, expectations of repeat orders to utilize the stock in trade, sales contract in hand and historically realized sales prices.

The significance of the balance coupled with the judgment involved has resulted in the valuation of inventories being identified as a key audit matter

The disclosures in relation to inventories are included in note 26.

To address the valuation of stock in trade, we assessed historical costs recorded in the inventory valuation; testing on a sample basis with purchase invoices. We tested the reasonability of assumptions applied by the management in allocating direct labour and direct overhead costs to inventories.

We also assessed management's determination of the net realizable value of inventories by performing tests on the sales prices secured by the Company for similar or comparable items of inventories.

3. First time adoption of IFRS 16 - Leases

As referred to in note 3.1 to the financial statements, the Company has adopted IFRS 16 – 'Leases'. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model with corresponding recognition of right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from accounting under IAS 17 'Leases' i.e. operating and finance leases. For lessees all leases will be classified as finance leases only with the exception of certain short-term leases.

We have considered the first time application of IFRS 16 as a key audit matter due to significance of the change in accounting methodology, involvement of significant estimates and judgments resulting in adjustments, presentation and incremental quantitative and qualitative disclosures.

Our key procedures to review the application of IFRS 16 included, amongst others, review of managements' impact assessment of all lease arrangements in light of application of the new standard, review of lease contracts to determine whether the same are in scope of IFRS 16 and are also subject to recognition exemption under IFRS 16 for short-term and low value leases. We also reviewed contracts to determine whether it is a lease contract, and if so its various components, lease term, rental amount, payment terms, etc., reviewed the appropriateness of discount rate used by the Company to determine the present value of lease liability and calculation of related depreciation and finance charge.



Key audit matter

4. Tax contingencies

As disclosed in note 20 to the annexed financial statements, various tax matters are pending adjudication at various levels with the taxation authorities and other legal forums.

Such contingencies require the management to make judgments and estimates in relation to the interpretation of tax laws and regulations and the recognition and measurement of any provisions that may be required against such contingencies. Due to inherent uncertainties and the time period such matters may take to resolve, the management's judgments and estimates in relation to such contingencies may be complex and can significantly impact the financial statements. For such reasons we have considered tax contingencies as a key audit

How our audit addressed the matter

Our key audit procedures in this area included, amongst others, a review of the correspondence of the Company with the relevant tax authorities and tax advisors including judgments or orders passed by the competent authorities.

We also obtained and reviewed confirmations from the Company's external tax advisor for their views on the status of each case and an overall opinion on the open tax position of the Company.

We involved internal tax experts to assess and review the management's conclusions on contingent tax matters and evaluated whether adequate disclosures have been made in note 19 to the annexed financial statements.

5. Litigation and claims

As disclosed in note 20 to the annexed financial statements, the Company is involved in litigation in respect of various matters including Gas Infrastructure Developments Cess and recovery claims by various banks.

Given the nature of contingencies, the assessment of the existence of the present legal or constructive obligation, analysis of the probability of the related payments and analysis of a reliable estimate, requires significant management's judgements to ensure appropriate accounting and disclosures. These judgements can change over time as new facts emerge and the case progresses. Therefore, we have identified this matter as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

- Assessed management's processes to identify new possible litigations, obligations and changes in existing obligations through inquiries from management and review of the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee.
- Reviewed of the relevant information including case proceedings, legal opinions related industry information and correspondences in respect of the ongoing litigations.
- Obtained confirmation from the legal counsel of the Company to evaluate the status of the pending litigations and view point of the Company's legal counsel thereon.
- Examined legal and professional expenses to confirm that all pending legal matters are identified and disclosed.
- Re-computed the amounts of obligations and recorded liabilities based on available underlying information and confronted parameters.
- Assessed the appropriateness of the related disclosures made in the accompanying financial statements in light of IAS 37 'Provisions and Contingencies'.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

- a) except for the possible effects of matters explained in 'Basis of Adverse Opinion' section of our report:
 - i. proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
 - ii. the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
 - iii. investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's business; and
- no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). b)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is ZUBAIR IRFAN MALIK.

RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ **Chartered Accountants**

Lahore: October 05, 2020



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES			
Authorized capital			
87,000,000 (2019: 87,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each		870,000,000	870,000,000
legued subscribed and naid up capital	7	865,779,200	965 770 200
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital Share premium	8	82,500,000	865,779,200 82,500,000
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment	9	438,903,099	465,056,876
Loan from directors and sponsors	10	481,500,000	403,030,870
Accumulated losses	10	(1,799,700,701)	(1,510,775,030)
TOTAL EQUITY		68,981,598	(97,438,954)
		00,501,550	(37, 130,331)
LIABILITIES			
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Long term finances	11	1,136,343,968	908,845,098
Long term loan from directors and sponsors	12	-	213,493,000
Lease liabilities	13	4,904,925	-
Employees retirement benefits	14	14,876,450	7,893,687
Deferred taxation	15	220,860,514	220,896,635
		1,376,985,857	1,351,128,420
CURRENT LIABILTIES			
Trade and other payables	16	558,699,716	809,150,599
Unclaimed dividend		2,757,216	2,757,216
Short term borrowings	17	809,279,436	1,345,646,184
Accrued interest	18	366,899,587	242,790,441
Current portion of non-current liabilities	19	38,371,166	59,165,314
		1,776,007,121	2,459,509,754
TOTAL LIABILITIES		3,152,992,978	3,810,638,174
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	20		
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		3,221,974,576	3,713,199,220

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
ASSETS			
NON-CURRENT ASSETS			
Fixed assets	21	2,295,738,076	2,380,081,576
Right-of-use assets	22	62,259,751	66,459,247
Long term investments	23	-	68,867,548
Long term deposits	24	48,148,652	33,026,841
		2,406,146,479	2,548,435,212
CURRENT ASSETS			
Stores, spares and loose tools	25	37,366,947	36,417,562
Stock in trade	26	288,798,084	251,674,899
Trade debts	27	184,206,555	605,316,530
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables	28	252,842,646	196,726,360
Advance income tax/income tax refundable	29	42,997,856	66,311,981
Cash and bank balances	30	9,616,009	8,316,676
		815,828,097	1,164,764,008

TOTAL ASSETS	3,221,974,576	3,713,199,220

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
Sales - <i>net</i>	31	1,463,373,950	2,645,989,119
Cost of sales	32	(1,529,789,245)	(3,707,501,122)
Gross loss		(66,415,295)	(1,061,512,003)
Distribution cost	33	(36,410)	(2,893,481)
Administrative expenses	34	(42,629,685)	(35,937,831)
		(42,666,095)	(38,831,312)
Other income	35	45,920,000	30,229,008
Operating loss		(63,161,390)	(1,070,114,307)
Finance cost	36	(166,351,700)	(220,935,640)
Notional interest	11.7.1	7,596,916	-
Other charges	37	(415,273)	(763,478)
		(222,331,447)	(1,291,813,425)
Share of loss of associate	23	(68,867,548)	(567,991,792)
Loss before taxation		(291,198,995)	(1,859,805,217)
Taxation	38	(12,589,576)	(156,036,892)
Loss after taxation		(303,788,571)	(2,015,842,109)
Loss per share - <i>basic and diluted</i>	39	(3.51)	(23.28)

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss		-	-
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss			
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation	14.3	(706,366)	(208,015)
Taxation related to remeasurements of defined benefit obligation		135,397	33,331
Taxation related to adjustment on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment attributable attributable to change			
in proportion of income taxation under final tax regime	9	(10,719,908)	(28,239,808)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of associate - unrealized		-	(1,041,983)
Other comprehensive loss		(11,290,877)	(29,456,475)
Loss for the year		(303,788,571)	(2,015,842,109)
Total comprehensive loss		(315,079,448)	(2,045,298,584)

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Cash generated from operations	40	92,295,553	139,596,128
Payments for:			
Employees retirement benefits		(5,277,265)	(9,248,760)
Finance cost		(23,746,554)	(42,359,759)
Income tax		103,917	(6,812,970)
Net cash generated from operating activities		63,375,651	81,174,639
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		(46,704,590)	(73,350,067)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		8,120,000	4,168,000
Net cash used in investing activities		(38,584,590)	(69,182,067)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Repayment of long term finances		(21,658,169)	(4,340,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities		(839,484)	(4,691,517)
Net decrease in short term borrowings		(994,075)	(62,916,189)
Net cash generated from financing activities		(23,491,728)	(71,947,706)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		1,299,333	(59,955,134)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		8,316,676	68,271,810
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR	41	9,616,009	8,316,676

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

-	Share capital		Capital reserves Surplus on revaluation of	Loan from	Revenue reserves	
	subscribed and paid-up capital Rupees	Share premium <i>Rupees</i>	property, plant and equipment Rupees	directors and sponsors Rupees	Accumulated losses Rupees	Total equity Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2018	865,779,200	82,500,000	507,951,005	-	491,629,425	1,947,859,630
Comprehensive income						
Loss after taxation Other comprehensive loss	-	-	(28,239,808)	-	(2,015,842,109) (1,216,667)	(2,015,842,109) (29,456,475)
Total comprehensive loss	-	-	(28,239,808)	-	(2,017,058,776)	(2,045,298,584)
Incremental depreciation	-	-	(14,654,321)	-	14,654,321	-
Transaction with owners	-	-	-	-	-	-
Balance as at June 30, 2019	865,779,200	82,500,000	465,056,876	-	(1,510,775,030)	(97,438,954)
Balance as at July 01, 2019	865,779,200	82,500,000	465,056,876	-	(1,510,775,030)	(97,438,954)
Comprehensive income						
Loss after taxation Other comprehensive loss	-	-	(10,719,908)	-	(303,788,571) (570,969)	(303,788,571) (11,290,877)
Total comprehensive loss	-	-	(10,719,908)	-	(304,359,540)	(315,079,448)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment realised on disposal	:		(796,419)	-	796,419	-
Incremental depreciation	-	-	(14,637,450)	-	14,637,450	-
Transaction with owners	-	-	-	-	-	-
Tranferred from long term loan from dirctors and sponsors Tranferred from short term borrowings	-	-	-	213,493,000 268,007,000	- -	213,493,000 268,007,000
Balance as at June 30, 2020	865,779,200	82,500,000	438,903,099	481,500,000	(1,799,700,701)	68,981,598

The annexed notes from 1 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statemements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Hira Textile Mills Limited ['the Company'] is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017), and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn. The registered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is situated at 8 K.M. Manga Raiwind Road, District Kasur in the province of Punjab.

The Company has been placed on defaulters segment by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited ['PSX'] under PSX regulations 5.11.1(b) 5.11.1(i).

2 **BASIS OF PREPARATION**

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS']issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['IASB']as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Appropriateness of the going concern assumption

The Company has been facing unfavorable market conditions, depressed yarn prices following weak demand of spun yarn, increase in raw material and production costs resulting in low margins for past few years. The production facility was closed for a month and half due to COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 66.415 million and loss after taxation of Rs. 303.789 million during the year ended June 30, 2020. As at June 30, 2020, the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,799.701 million as at the reporting date and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 960.179 million. The Company has failed to make timely repayments of its debt finances and interest thereon due to which lenders have filed recovery suits against the Company. All short term borrowing facilities availed by the Company stand expired. These factors raise doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and that the Company may not be able discharge its liabilities and realize its assets in normal course of business. However, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis based on the following:

- The managment of the company has entered into negotiation with the providers of debt finances for restructuring of long term and short term debt including accrued interest thereon. The management successfully negotiated restructuring of short term debt and lease liabilities, including accrued interest thereon with the Bank of Punjab, whereby liabilities amounting to Rs. 229.453 million was converted into long term finance (see note 11.6) with a grace period upto December 2021 and accrued interest amounting to Rs. 10.899 million was converted into interest free long term finance (see note 11.7) with repayments commencing from December 2026. A restructuring / rescheduling agreement with Faysal Bank Limited has been finalized in principal and is in the process of final approval. The management is confident that it will be able to secure a reasonable arrangement. Further, rounds of negotiations for debt restructuring with National Bank of Pakistan are also in process and the management expects to secure a favourable deal soon.
- The management is vigorously contesting the recovery suits filed by providers of debt finances. Further, the Company has filed countersuits claiming an aggregate recovery of 3,053.244 million (see note 20.1).
- c) The Company has continued financial support of its directors and sponsors. Upto June 30, 2020, the directors and sponsors of the Company has provided financial support amounting to Rs. 531.44 million .
- The Company has shifted its product mix from manufacturing of coarse count yarn to fine count yarn. This will lead to lower cost of raw material (primarily cotton) and reduction in manpower requirements, reduction in per spindle cost through savings in energy costs as well as upto 60% savings in labour costs. This, coupled with a company-wide cost-cutting drive, is expected to provide the much needed breathing room in terms of liquidity

The management believes that in view of the afore mentioned, the Company will able to continue as a going concern.



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for employees retirement benefits liabilities measured at present value and certain financial instruments measured at fair value/amortized cost. In these financial statements, except for the amounts reflected in the statement of cash flows, all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

2.3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods

2.3.1 Critical accounting judgements

Judgments made by management in the application of accounting and reporting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

Business model assessment (see note 6.7.2)

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed.

2.3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 6.24.1)

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initial recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimating expected credit losses and changes there in requires taking into account qualitative and quantitative forward looking information. When measuring expectied credit losses on financial assets the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward looking information as well as historical data to calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any. Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

Depreciation method, rates and useful lives of operating fixed assets (see note 6.1)

The Company reassesses useful lives, depreciation method and rates for each item of operating fixed assets annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive from that item.

Recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets (see note 6.24.2)

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its non-financial assets for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such indication.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Taxation (see note 6.2)

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal forums while estimating its provision for current tax. Provision for deferred tax is estimated after taking into account historical and expected future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law.

Provisions (see note 6.14)

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, that is, the amount that the Company would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (see note 6.1)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts of nondepreciable items are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable items are determined by reference to present depreciated replacement values.

Net realizable values of stock in trade (see note 6.5)

The Company estimates net realizable values of its stock in trade as the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.4 **Functional currency**

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency.

Date of authorization for issue 2.5

These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE DURING THE YEAR. 3

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments are effective in the current year but are either not relevant to the Company or their application does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than presentation and disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

3.1 IFRS 16 - Leases (2016)

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 - Leases, IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 - Operating Leases- Incentives and SIC-27 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease'. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single onbalance sheet model. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Whereas, for lessees all leases will be classified as finance leases only. However, as per relevant guidelines issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, contracts under Ijarah will continue to be treated as operating leases under IFAS 2.

The Company adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of July 01, 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying standard recognised at the date of initial application and accordingly the Company is not required to restate prior year results.

The Company assessed its existing contracts and concluded that right-of-use assets as disclosed in these financial statements shall be recognised along with their corresponding lease liabilities. For other existing contracts, the Company elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of twelve months or less and do not contain a purchase option ('short-term leases'), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value ('low value assets').

The right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to their corresponding lease liabilities, adjusted for related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments. The Company did not have any sub-lease as on July 01, 2019. Accordingly, initial application of IFRS 16 did not have any impact on the opening retained earnings as of July 01, 2019 and on these financial statements.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically considers:

- Whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
- Assumptions for taxation authorities' examinations;
- The determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
- The effect of changes in facts and circumstances.

3.3 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments)

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments has been amended regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments.

3.4 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures)

IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures have been amended to clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle 3.5

The annual improvements have made amendments to the following standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that business.
- IAS 12 Income Taxes The amendments clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B (to recognize the income tax consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated distributable profits are recognized) apply to all income tax consequences of dividends by moving the paragraph away from paragraph 52A that only deals with situations where there are different tax rates for distributed and undistributed profits.
- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings.

3.6 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19 - Employee Benefits)

IAS 19 - Employees Benefits has been amended to provide that:

If a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is now mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the remeasurement are determined using the assumptions used for the remeasurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE. 4

The following standards, interpretations and amendments are in issue which are not effective as at the reporting date and have not been early adopted by the Company.

> **Effective date** (annual periods beginning on or after)

IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts (2017)

Sale or contribution of assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures).

January 01, 2021

Deferred Indefinitely



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Effective date (annual periods beginning on or after)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards	January 01, 2020
Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations)	January 01, 2020
Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors)	January 01, 2020
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements, and IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures).	January 01, 2020
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards).	January 01, 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations).	January 01, 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment).	January 01, 2022
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37 - Impairment of Assets).	January 01, 2022
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020.	January 01, 2022
COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases).	June 01, 2020

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IABS has also issued the following standards which have not been notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP']:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts (2017)

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments on their effective dates, subject to, where required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under section 225 of the Companies Act, 2017 regarding their adoption. The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the Company's financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The adoption of new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments effective during the year has resulted in changes to accounting policies as follows:

Previous accounting policy

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost' respectively, however, since they fall outside the scope of measurement requirements of IFRS 9, these are measured in accordance with the requirements of IAS 17. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date of commencement of lease, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

New accounting policy

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Previous accounting policy

New accounting policy

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses if the interest rate implicit in the lease. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Assets subject to finance lease

Assets subject to finance lease are classified as 'operating fixed assets'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation, subsequent expenditure, de-recognition, and gains and losses on de-recognition are accounted for in accordance with the respective policies for operating fixed assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred (if any), and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less lease incentives received (if any). Right-of-use assets are depreciated at the shorter of their useful lives and lease terms unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, in which case, these are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 6

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, except of change referred to in note 5.

6.1 Property, plant and equipment

6.1.1 Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses with the exception of freehold land, which is stated at revalued amount, and buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery which are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction, erection and installation.

Major renewals and improvements to operating fixed assets are recognized in the carrying amount if it is probable that the embodied future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of renewal or improvement can be measured reliably. The cost of the dayto-day servicing of operating fixed assets are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

The Company recognizes depreciation in profit or loss by applying reducing balance method over the useful life of each operating fixed asset using rates specified in note 21.1 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions to operating fixed assets is charged from the month in which the item becomes available for use. Depreciation is discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

An operating fixed asset is de-recognized when permanently retired from use. Any gain or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

6.1.2 Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any, and includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads directly relating to the construction, erection or installation of an item of operating fixed assets. These costs are transferred to operating fixed assets as and when related items become available for intended use.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

6.1.3 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred (if any), and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less lease incentives received (if any). Right-of-use assets are depreciated at the shorter of their useful lives and lease terms unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, in which case, these are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

6.1.4 Spare parts held exclusively for capitalization

These are carried at cost less accumulated impairment. Cost is determined using moving average, except for items in transit, which are carried at invoice price plus related costs incurred upto the reporting date.

6.2 Surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in share capital and reserves. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumulated profit.

6.3 Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associates have been incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post acquisition changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associates, less any impairment in the investment. Losses of an associates in excess of the Company's interest in that associate (which include any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Company's net investment in the associate) are recoganise only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payment on behalf of the associate.

6.4 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average except for items in transit, which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items which are considered obsolete, the carrying amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalization are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is determined using the following basis:

Raw material Weighted average cost Work in process Average manufacturing cost Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

6.6 **Employee benefits**

6.6.1 Short-term employee benefits

The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in statement of profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of inventories or property, plant and equipment as permitted or required by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or cash refund.

6.6.2 Post-employment benefits

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its employees at mill who have completed the minimum qualifying service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to statement of profit or loss with the exception of remeasurements which are recognized in statement of comprehensive income. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligation. The details of the scheme are referred to in note 14 to the financial statements.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved funded contributory provident fund for its employees at head office who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the respective scheme. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% percent of basic salary and cost of living allowance, where applicable, to cover the obligation. Contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

6.7 **Financial instruments**

6.7.1 Recognition

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

6.7.2 Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of contractual provisions. The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost

These are financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cashflows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

These are financial liabilities which are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitments to provide loans at belowmarket interest rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilities that arise when transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition.

6.7.3 Measurement

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument.

6.7.4 Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or when the Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligations specified in the contract expire or a discharged or cancelled.

6.7.5 Off-setting

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

6.8 Ordinary share capital

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as deduction from equity.

Loans and borrowings 6.9

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Lease liabilities 6.10

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses if the interest rate implicit in the lease. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

6.11 Operating leases as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

6.12 liarah transactions

Ujrah payments under an Ijarah are recognized as an expense in the statements of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the Ijarah terms unless another systematic basis are representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit, even if the payments are not on that

Trade and other payables

6.13.1 Financial liabilities

These are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in statement of profit or loss.

6.13.2 Non-financial liabilities

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost.

6.14 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provision is recognized at an amount that is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

6.15 Trade and other receivables

6.15.1 Financial assets

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of transaction, plus attributable transaction costs, except for trade debts that do not have a significant financing compenent, which are measured at undiscounted invoice price. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

6.15.2 Non-financial assets

These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost.

Revenue 6.16

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue from operations of the Company are recognized when the goods are provided, and thereby the performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue consists of sale of yarn. The Company's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at the point in time when the goods are dispatched to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time, as the control has been transferred to the customers

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ['OCI'].OCI comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in statement of profit or loss as required or permitted by accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

6.18 **Borrowing costs**

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

6.19 Operating segment

The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company.

6.20 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in statement of comprehensive income.

6.20.1 Current taxation

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

6.20.2 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the treatment prescribed by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Adeferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Earnings per share ['EPS']

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

6.22 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks.

Foreign currency transactions and balances 6.23

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initial recognition. Any gain or loss arising on translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment 6.24

6.24.1 Financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of inital recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial asset.

Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairment is recognized at an amount equal to twelve months' expected credit losses, with the exception of trade debts, for which the Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic conditions, and an assessment for both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

6.24.2 Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

6.25 Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity and as a liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid, in the Company's financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL		
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each		
48,000,000 (2019: 48,000,000) shares issued for cash	480,000,000	480,000,000
38,577,920 (2019: 38,577,920) shares issued as fully paid bonus shares	385,779,200	385,779,200
	865,779,200	865,779,200

SHARE PREMIUM 8

This represents premium on issue of ordinary shares recognized under Section 83(1) of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT		
As at beginning of the year	465,056,876	507,951,005
Incremental depreciation transferred to accumulated profits		
Incremental depreciation for the year	(17,430,366)	(17,450,456)
Deferred taxation	2,792,916	2,796,135
	(14,637,450)	(14,654,321)
Surplus realised on disposal		
Surplus on the assets disposed off	(948,381)	-
Deferred taxation	151,962	-
	(796,419)	-
Other adjustments		
Deferred tax adjustment attributable to changes in proportion of		
income taxation under final tax regime	(10,719,908)	(28,239,808)
As at end of the year	438,903,099	465,056,876

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS AND SPONSORS 10

This represents loan obtained from directors and sponsors. The loans are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company subject to subordination arrangements with providers of debt finances expected to be executed in ensuing year. The details are as follows:

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
As at beginning of the year		-	-
Transferred from long term loan from directors and sponsors	12	213,493,000	-
Transferred from short term borrowings	17.2	268,007,000	-
As at end of the year		481,500,000	-

11



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
LONG TERM FINANCES			
These represent secured long term finances utilized under interest			
arrangements from banking companies			
Term Finances ['TF']			
TF - I	11.1	17,276,667	21,575,000
TF - II	11.2	316,088,000	316,088,000
TF - III	11.3	466,788,303	466,788,303
TF - IV	11.4	92,158,000	99,658,000
TF - V	11.5	40,000,000	40,000,000
TF - VI	11.6	229,453,080	-
TF - VII	11.7	10,899,084	-
		1,172,663,134	944,109,303
Current portion presented under current liabilities	19	(36,319,166)	(35,264,205)
		1,136,343,968	908,845,098

- 11.1 TF-I has been obtained from Askari Bank Limited to finance capital expenditure and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at 5% per annum (2019: 5% per annum) payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in February, 2019. However, during the year, the lender has approved principal deferral for a period of one year under the State Bank of Pakistan BPRD circular No. 14 of 2020.
- 11.2 TF-II has been obtained from MCB Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, subordination of loan from directors and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at 8% (2019: three months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in June 2020. An amount of Rs. 15.8 million and Rs. 55.711 million on account of principal and interest is overdue respectively as at the reporting date.
- 11.3 TF-III has been obtained from National Bank of Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the Company's Directors and pledge of 25% shares of Hira Textile Mills Limited. The finance carries interest at rates ranging from 5% to 8% (2019: three months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in June 2020. An amount of Rs. 7.77 million and Rs. 77.842 million on account of principal and interest is overdue respectively as at the reporting date.
- 11.4 TF IV has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at rates ranging from a fixed rate of 5.6% to three months KIBOR plus 1% (2019: three months KIBOR plus 1%) per annum, payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in July 2020. An amount of Rs. 18.479 million on account of interest is overdue as at the reporting date.
- 11.5 TF-V has been obtained from Habib Bank Limited on conversion of short term borrowings and is secured by charge over operating fixed assets of the Company, personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at one month KIBOR plus 1% per annum (2019: one month KIBOR plus 1% per annum) payable monthly. The finance is repayable in forty equal monthly installments with the first installment due in April 2020. An amount of Rs. 3 million and Rs. 4.11 million on account of principal and interest is overdue respectively as at the reporting date.
- TF-VI has been obtained from The Bank of Punjab on conversion of short term borrowing, lease libility and restructuring and is secured by charge over fixed and current assets of the company, existing ownership of leased assets and personal guarantees of Company's Directors. The finance carries interest at the lender's cost of funds, payable quaterly. The finance is repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments with the first installment due in December, 2021. During the year, the lender allowed payment of interest for the quarters ended March 31, 2020 and June 30, 2020 to be deferred till August 31, 2020 and September 30, 2020 respectively. An amount of Rs. 3.52 million on account of interest is overdue as at the reporting date.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

11.7 TF-VII represents accrued interest on short term borrowings and lease liability obtained from The Bank of Punjab frozen on the request of the management and converted into long term finance. The finance is secured by charge over current and fixed assets of the Company, existing ownership of leased assets and personal guarantee of the Company's Director. The finance carries no interest. The finance is repayable in four equal quaterly installments with the first installment due in December 2026. The finance has been carried at amortised cost which has been determined using a discount rate of 8%.

		2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
Face value of loan		18,496,000	-
Unamortized notional interest	11.7.1	(7,596,916)	-
As at end of the year		10,899,084	-

11.7.1 Unamortized notional interest

As at end of the year	7,596,916	-
Recognized during the year	7,596,916	-
As at beginning of the year	-	-

For mortgages and charges on assets as security for liabilities, refer to note 47 to the financial statements.

12 LONG TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS AND SPONSORS

These represent finances obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company and is unsecured. The finance carries interest at six months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (2019: six months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum). As per the terms of this loan, the lenders on their sole discretion may waive full or partial payment of interest on these finances. As on the reporting date, these finances have been converted into interest free loans (See note 10), to be subordinated to debt finances in the ensuing year, as per mutual agreement between the Company and lending directors and sponsors. Accordingly, these have been classified as equity in accordance with the guidance provided in Technical Release - 32 'Accounting for Directors' Loan' issued by the ICAP.

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
3	LEASE LIABILITIES			
	Present value of minimum lease payments	13.1 & 13.2	6,956,925	22,086,409
	Current portion presented under current liabilities	13.1 & 13.2	(2,052,000)	(22,086,409)
	-		4.904.925	-

13.1 These represent vehicles and machinery acquired under finance lease arrangements. The leases are priced at rates ranging from six months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2019: three months to six months KIBOR plus 1.5% to 2% per annum). Lease rentals are payable monthly over a tenor ranging from 4 to 5 years. Under the terms of agreement, taxes, repairs, replacements and insurance costs in respect of assets subject to finance lease are borne by the Company. The Company also has the option to acquire these assets at the end of their respective lease terms by adjusting the deposit amount against the residual value of the asset and intends to exercise the option. During the year, lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 14.29 million have been transferred to long term finances (TF VI) (See note 11.5).



2019

2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The amount of future payments under the finance lease arrangements and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
Not later than one year		2,468,727	16,975,515
Later than one year but not later than five years		5,030,277	5,972,423
Total future minimum lease payments		7,499,004	22,947,938
Finance charge allocated to future periods		(542,079)	(861,529)
Present value of future minimum lease payments		6,956,925	22,086,409
Not later than one year	19	(2,052,000)	(22,086,409)
Later than one year but not later than five years		4,904,925	-

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its workers who have completed the minimum qualifying service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly gross salary for each year of service to scheme members whereas the members of the scheme are not required to make any contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administered by the management of the Company under the supervision and directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents present value of defined benefit obligation.

Note

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
.1	Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation			
	As at beginning of the year		9,708,387	12,154,649
	Charged to profit or loss for the year	14.2	9,738,962	6,594,483
	Benefits paid during the year		(5,277,265)	(9,248,760)
	Actuarial loss arising during the year		706,366	208,015
	As at end of the year		14,876,450	9,708,387
	Benefits due presented under current liabilities	19	-	(1,814,700
			14,876,450	7,893,687
		Note	2020	2019
		Note	Rupees	Rupees
				apccs
4.2	Charge to profit or loss			
	Current service cost		6,659,280	6,064,649
	Past service cost		2,422,800	-
	Interest cost		656,882	529,834
			9,738,962	6,594,483
4.3	Remeasurements recognized in statement of comprehensive inc	come		
	Actuarial loss arising from changes in:			
	Demographic assumptions		-	-
	Financial assumptions		-	-
	Experience adjustments		706,366	208,015
			706,366	208,015



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Principal actuarial assumptions

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method. The liability as at the reporting date is based on actuarial valuation carried out by independent actuaries. The principal assumptions used in determining present value of defined benefit obligation are:

	2020	2019
Discount rate	8.50%	12.50%
Expected rates of increase in salary	7.50%	11.50%

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is ten years.

Expected charge to statement of profit or loss for the next financial year

The expected charge to statement of profit or loss for the year ending June 30, 2020 amounts to Rs. 8.887 million.

14.7 Sensitivity analysis

An analysis of sensitivity for discount rate and expected rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at that date is as follows:

	2020		2019	
	Change		Change	Defined
	in actuarial	benefit	in actuarial	benefit
	assumption	obligation	assumption	obligation
		Rupees		Rupees
Discount rate	+ 1%	13,323,049	+ 1%	8,586,090
	- 1%	16,797,525	- 1%	11,101,941
Expected rates of increase in salary	+ 1%	16,797,525	+ 1%	11,101,941
	- 1%	13,296,815	- 1%	8,567,096

A change in expected remaining working lives of employees is not expected to have a material impact on the present value of defined benefit obligation. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis for the same has not been carried out.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date has been calculated using projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation to be recognized in these financial statements.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

14.8 Risk factors

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following actuarial risks:

Interest risk: The discount rate used in determination of present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined by reference to market yield at the reporting date on government bonds since there is no deep market in long term corporate bonds in Pakistan. An increase in market yield resulting in a higher discount rate will decrease in the defined benefit liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the expected remaining working lives of the employees. An increase in the expected remaining working lives will increase the defined benefit obligation. However, the increase is not expected to be material.

Salary risk: The present value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to future salaries of employees. An increase in salary of employees will increase the defined benefit obligation.

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
15	Deferred taxation			
	Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences	15.1	313,479,532	277,320,244
	Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences	15.1	(92,619,018)	(56,423,609)
			220,860,514	220,896,635

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

			2020	
	As at	Recognized in	Recognized	As at
	July 01	profit or loss	in OCI	June 30
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Deferred tax liabilities				
Operating fixed assets	257,568,443	34,590,687	10,719,908	302,879,038
Right-of-used assets	7,109,983	3,490,511	-	10,600,494
Long term investment	12,641,818	(12,641,818)	-	-
	264,678,426	25,439,380	10,719,908	313,479,532
Deferred tax assets				
Employees retirement benefits	(1,555,602)	(1,160,532)	(135,397)	(2,851,531)
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses	(122,334)	120,066	-	(2,268)
Unused tax losses and credits	(54,745,673)	(35,019,546)	-	(89,765,219)
	(56,423,609)	(36,060,012)	(135,397)	(92,619,018)
	208,254,817	(10,620,632)	10,584,511	220,860,514
			2019	
	As at	Recognized in	Recognized	As at
	July 01	profit or loss	in OCI	June 30
Deferred tax liabilities	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Operating fixed assets	137,483,452	91,845,183	28,239,808	257,568,443
Right-of-used assets	3,757,143	3,352,840	-	7,109,983
Long term investment	(5,493,205)	18,135,023	-	12,641,818
	135,747,390	113,333,046	28,239,808	277,320,244
Deferred tax assets				
Employees retirement benefits	(1,036,397)	(485,874)	(33,331)	(1,555,602)
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses	-	(122,334)	-	(122,334)
Unused tax losses and credits	(68,149,525)	13,403,852	-	(54,745,673)
	(69,185,922)	12,795,644	(33,331)	(56,423,609)
	66,561,468	126,128,690	28,206,477	220,896,635



- Deferred tax arising from timing differences pertaining to income from business is provided for only that portion of timing differences that represent income taxable under normal provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ['the Ordinance'] as revenue from export sales of the Company is subject to taxation under the final tax regime, while the remaining portion of revenue attracts assessment under normal provisions of the Ordinance. These differences are calculated at that proportion of total timing differences that the local sales, other than the indirect exports taxable under section 154 (3) of the Ordinance, bear to the total sales revenue based on historical and future trends. Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (2019: 29%) of the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notified by the Government of Pakistan for future tax years.
- 15.3 Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses and credits amounting to Rs. 1,451.836 million and long term investment amounting to Rs. 21.951 million has not been recognized as sufficient taxable profits are not expected to be available in future against which these could be utilized. The deferred tax asset on unused tax losses has been recognized only the extent of unabsorbed tax depreciation losses as these are available for use for an infinite period under the present income tax laws.

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			
Trade creditors	16.1	182,017,052	698,912,708
Accrued liabilities		98,040,223	86,057,950
Advances from customers		7,127,586	17,435,179
Payable to Provident Fund Trust		2,467,220	1,622,737
Tax deducted at source		649,896	2,382,690
Sales tax payable		26,591,682	-
Due to related party	16.2	189,127,049	-
Workers' Profit Participation Fund		781,124	781,124
Workers' Welfare Fund		1,958,211	1,958,211
Other payables		49,939,673	-
		558,699,716	809,150,599

- 16.1 This includes nil (2019: Rs. 273 million) recognized as provision against debit note issue to Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party.
- This represents advances obtained from Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party, against rent on assets leased out to the related party 16.2 under operating lease arrangement.
- This represents current account with a sponsor of the Company and includes amounts reimbursible to the sponsor against expenses 16.3 paid for on behalf of the Company.

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
7 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS			
Banking companies	17.1	809,279,436	1,027,555,511
Directors and sponsors	17.2	-	318,090,673
		809,279,436	1,345,646,184
7.1 Banking companies			
These represent short term finances utilized under interest arrangements from banking companies.			
Running finances	17.1.1	413,162,339	502,638,414
Term loans	17.1.2	396,117,097	524,917,097
		809,279,436	1,027,555,511



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

- 17.1.1 These facilities have been obtained from various banking companies for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over all present and future current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of sponsors. These carry interest at rates 8% per annum (2019: one to six months KIBOR plus 1% to 3% per annum) payable quarterly/monthly. During the year, short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 88.626 million were converted into long term finance (see note 11.6). As at the reporting date, Rs. 413.162 million and Rs 62.233 million on account of principal and interest respectively are over due.
- 17.1.2 These facilities have been obtained from various banking companies for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over all present and future current, fixed assets of the Company. These carry interest at rates ranging from 5% to 15.13% (2019: 8.43% to 13.13%) per annum payable quarterly/monthly. During the year, short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 128.8 million were converted into long term finance (See note 11.6). As at the reporting date, Rs. 300 million and Rs. 95.272 million on account of principal and interest respectively are over due.
- 17.1.3 All short term borrowing facilities stand expired as at the reporting date.

17.2 Loan from directors and sponsors

This represents loan obtained from directors for working capital requirements. The loan is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Details are as follows:

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
As at beginning of the year		318,090,673	301,662,373
Obtained during the year		-	16,933,300
Repaid during the year		(144,000)	(505,000)
Transferred to equity	17.2.1	(268,007,000)	-
Transferred to other payables	16.3	(49,939,673)	
As at end of the year		-	318,090,673

17.2.1 As on the reporting date, these finances have been converted into interest free loans (See note 10), to be subordinated to debt finances in the ensuing year, as per mutual agreement between the Company and lending directors and sponsors. Accordingly, these have been classified as equity in accordance with the guidance provided in Technical Release - 32 'Accounting for Directors' Loan' issued by the ICAP.

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
18	ACCRUED INTEREST			
	Long term finances		188,676,339	101,098,690
	Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease		-	1,317,250
	Short term borrowings		178,223,248	140,374,501
		18.1	366,899,587	242,790,441

- During the year, accrued interest on long term finances, lease liabilities and short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 18.496 million 18.1 have been converted to long term finances (See note 11.7).
- 18.2 Accrued interest includes Rs. 317.166 million which is overdue as at the reporting date.

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES			
Long term finances	11	36,319,166	35,264,205
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease	13	2,052,000	22,086,409
Employee retirement benefits	14	-	1,814,700
		38.371.166	59.165.314



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1 Contingencies

- 20.1.1 The Company received a demand order in respect of detection bill amounting to Rs. 6.7 million. The Company has filed an appeal before Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority against the said detection bill. The appeal has not been fixed for hearing so far.
- 20.1.2 For the tax year 2010, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue ['ACIR'] created a tax demand amounting to Rs. 186.6 million. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals ['CIR-A']who partially remanded back the case but upheld the reduction in refund amounting to Rs. 0.6 million. The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue ['ATIR'], which is pending adjudication. The management and the tax / legal advisors of the Company are of the view that the matter will eventually be settled in favor of the Company.
- 20.1.3 For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue ['DCIR'] created a tax demand amounting to Rs. 28.7 million. The Company filed an appeal before CIR-A which is pending adjudication. The management and the tax / legal advisors of the Company are of the view that the matter will eventually be settled in favor of the Company.
- 20.1.4 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ['GIDC'] has been levied with effect from December 15, 2011 on industrial gas customers firstly through OGRA notification and subsequently via GID Cess Ordinance 2014 and GID Cess Act 2015. The Company, along with other industrial concerns, has filed a writ petition in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging the imposition of GIDC. On October 26, 2016, the Honorable High Court of Sindh held that enactment of GIDC Act 2015 is ultra-vires to the constitution of Pakistan. The Company has not recognised any provision relating to GIDC aggregating to Rs. 73.9 million.
- 20.1.5 MCB Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 491.038 million, before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 28331/2019. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 908.801 million before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 41369/2019.
- 20.1.6 Bank Alfalah Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 214.991 million, before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 35823/2019. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 517.377 million before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 64374/2019.
- 20.1.7 National Bank of Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 823.027 million, before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 13653/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 1,476.893 million before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 40272/2020.
- 20.1.8 Samba Bank Limited filed a suit against the Company and others for recovery of Rs. 246.381 million, before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 1770/2020. This suit is presently pending adjudication. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. Further, the Company has filed a counter suit for recovery of Rs. 150.173 million before the Honorable High Court Lahore vide COS No. 25832/2020.

		2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
20.1.7	Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company	29,542,428	29,542,428
	Post dated cheques to Collector of Customs	7,920,000	7,920,000
		37,462,428	37,462,428

20.2 Commitments

There are no commitments as at June 30, 2020

		Note	2020	2019
21	FIXED ASSETS		Rupees	Rupees
	Operating fixed assets Capital work in progress	21.1	2,295,738,076 -	2,380,081,576
			2,295,738,076	2,380,081,576



							2020					
		COST	COST/REVALUED AMOUNT	T				DEP	DEPRECIATION			Net book
	As at				As at		As at				As at	value as at
	July 01, 2019	Additions	Disposals	Transfers	June 30, 2020	Rate	July 01, 2019	For the year	Adjustment	Transfers	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2020
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	%	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Freehold land	183,480,000				183,480,000							183,480,000
Buildings on freehold land	350,525,941	509,963			351,035,904	Ŋ	49,544,598	15,056,535			64,601,133	286,434,771
Plant and machinery	1,934,691,906	32,110,376	(42,790,959)		1,924,011,323	Ŋ	261,360,104	84,473,057	(34,657,338)		311,175,823	1,612,835,500
Electric installation	164,584,448	8,065,705			172,650,153	10	95,665,307	7,267,346			102,932,653	69,717,500
Generator	123,215,005				123,215,005	10	47,417,015	7,579,799	•		54,996,814	68,218,191
Power house	166,911,487	5,491,848			172,403,335	10	97,421,500	7,084,204	,		104,505,704	67,897,631
Factory equipment	2,443,756	80,332			2,524,088	10	1,699,173	78,368			1,777,541	746,547
Office equipment	1,434,120	208,349			1,642,469	10	1,116,239	41,601			1,157,840	484,629
Tele phone installation	1,576,022				1,576,022	10	1,103,186	47,284			1,150,470	425,552
Tarpaulin	382,057	•			382,057	10	331,058	5,100	,		336,158	45,899
Computers	5,816,851	152,125			5,968,976	10	3,395,436	246,158	•		3,641,594	2,327,382
Furniture and fixtures	5,742,006	85,892			5,827,898	10	3,801,534	198,056	•		3,999,590	1,828,308
Vehicles	10,061,047		(1,324,600)		8,736,447	20	7,927,920	447,142	(934,781)		7,440,281	1,296,166

Jar
ğ
2
99
138,
~.
19
20
9
8,66
438
of
ea
ā
an
무
`≥
'n
Kas
at
ted
cat
0
are
5
bal
no
Č
ţ
of
ds
a
ㅁ
은
ee.
Ē
Η.
17
7

							2019					
		COS	COST/REVALUED AMOUNT	TN				E	DEPRECIATION			Net book
	As at				As at		As at				As at	value as at
	July 01, 2018	Additions	Disposals	Transfers	June 30, 2019	Rate	July 01, 2018	For the year	Adjustment	Transfers	June 30, 2019	June 30, 2019
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	%	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Freehold land	183,480,000	,	,	,	183,480,000				,		,	183,480,000
Buildings on freehold land	350,525,941	1	,		350,525,941	2	33,703,475	15,841,123	,		49,544,598	300,981,343
Plant and machinery	1,873,618,994	61,072,912	,		1,934,691,906	2	175,135,019	86,225,085	,		261,360,104	1,673,331,802
Electric installation	154,321,937	10,262,511	,		164,584,448	10	88,935,468	6,729,839	,		95,665,307	68,919,141
Generator	123,215,005	1	,		123,215,005	10	38,995,016	8,421,999	,		47,417,015	75,797,990
Power house	166,638,661	272,826			166,911,487	10	89,713,930	7,707,570	,		97,421,500	69,489,987
Factory equipment	2,100,357	343,399			2,443,756	10	1,652,963	46,210	,		1,699,173	744,583
Office equipment	1,398,090	36,030			1,434,120	10	1,084,019	32,220	,		1,116,239	317,881
Telephone installation	1,576,022	,			1,576,022	10	1,050,649	52,537	,		1,103,186	472,836
Tarpaulin	382,057	,			382,057	10	325,391	5,667	,		331,058	50,999
Computers	5,693,225	123,626			5,816,851	10	3,140,088	255,348	,		3,395,436	2,421,415
Furniture and fixtures	5,673,243	68,763			5,742,006	10	3,592,712	208,822	,		3,801,534	1,940,472
Vehicles	9,960,547	1,170,000	(1,069,500)		10,061,047	20	8,290,391	340,878	(703,349)		7,927,920	2,133,127
	000 801 000 0	170 070 07	1007 070 17		747 470 010 0		7070	000 100	(000 000)		000 000	717

5,118,668 104,463

4,115,506 83,990

32

22.1 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Livity 01, 2019 Additions Transfers Interest of Appears Franches As at Livity 02, 2019				COST					DE	DEPRECIATION			Net book
d machinery Additions Disposals Rupees Transfers Inne 30, 2020 Rate (Rupees) Rupees (Rupees) Rupees (Rupees) Transfers Inne 30, 2020 Rate (Rupees) Rupees Rupees <th></th> <th>As at</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>As at</th> <th></th> <th>As at</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>As at</th> <th>value as at</th>		As at				As at		As at				As at	value as at
d machinery Typ, 402, 549 Nupees Rupees		July 01, 2019	Additions	Disposals	Transfers	June 30, 2020	Rate	July 01, 2019	For the year	Adjustment	Transfers	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2020
d machinery 79,402,549 79,402,549 5 18,786,860 3,030,784 0 21,817,644		Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	%	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
86,463,574 1,061,025 1,104,012 1,104,01,2018	Plant and machinery	79,402,549				79,402,549	r	18,786,860	3,030,784			21,817,644	57,584,905
86,463,574 20,004,327 4,199,496 - 24,003,823 As at Uuly 01, 2018 As at Rupees As at R	Vehicles	7,061,025				7,061,025	20	1,217,467	1,168,712			2,386,179	4,674,846
As at Liuly 01, 2018 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July 01, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July 01, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July 01, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rupees 79,402,549 S 15,596,561 3,190,299 S 15,596,561 3,120,299 S 12,572,905 S 15,511,880 S 18,6463,574 S 18,720,235 S 15,213,131 S 13,939,039 S 15,004,327 S 15,511,880		86,463,574	-		-	86,463,574		20,004,327	4,199,496		-	24,203,823	62,259,751
As at Luly O1, 2018 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July O1, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July O1, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 79,402,549 5 15,596,561 3,190,299 7 12,572,905 7 (5,511,880) 7,061,025 20 3,123,674 2,032,832 (3,939,039) 7 20,004,327 20,04327 41,872,045 7 (5,511,880) 86,463,574 18,720,235 5,223,131 (3,939,039) 7 20,004,327 Rupees								2019					
As at As at Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July 01, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rupees Rupee				COST				67.02	DE	PRECIATION			Netbook
July 01, 2018 Additions Disposals Transfers June 30, 2019 Rate July 01, 2018 For the year Adjustment Transfers June 30, 2019 Rupees		Asat				As at		As at				As at	value as at
Rupees Rupees<		July 01, 2018	Additions	Disposals	Transfers	June 30, 2019	Rate	July 01, 2018	For the year	Adjustment	Transfers	June 30, 2019	June 30, 2019
79,402,549 .		Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	%	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
12,572,905 - (5,511,880) - 7,061,025 20 3,123,674 2,032,832 (3,939,039) - 1,213 91,975,454 - (5,511,880) - 86,463,574 18,720,235 5,223,131 (3,939,039) - 20,000	Plant and machinery	79,402,549	,			79,402,549	2	15,596,561	3,190,299	,		18,786,860	60,615,689
- (5,511,880) - 86,463,574 18,720,235 5,223,131 (3,939,039) - 20,000 Note R	Vehicles	12,572,905		(5,511,880)		7,061,025	20	3,123,674	2,032,832	(3,939,039)		1,217,467	5,843,558
R		91,975,454		(5,511,880)		86,463,574		18,720,235	5,223,131	(3,939,039)		20,004,327	66,459,247
B											Moto	0000	0100
Kulpees											Mote	0202	CTO7
												Kupees	Kupees



					2020		
		Accumulated	Net	Disposal	Gain/(loss)	Mode of	
Particulars	Cost	depreciation	book value	proceeds	on disposal	disposal	Particulars of buyer
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees		
Plant and machinery							
Doubler Machines	31,865,520	26,710,416	5,155,104	000'066	(4,165,104)	Negotiation	AMS Enterprises, Karachi
Power Generators	10,925,439	7,946,922	2,978,517	6,550,000	3,571,483	Negotiation	Nagina Engineering Works, Lahore
	42,790,959	34,657,338	8,133,621	7,540,000	(593,621)		
Vehicles							
Suzuki Bolan	417,600	388,066	29,534	200,000	170,466	Negotiation	Muhammad Ijaz Butt, Lahore
FAW / XPV	902,000	546,715	360,285	380,000	19,715	Negotiation	Mr. Aman Naeem, Lahore
	1,324,600	934,781	389,819	580,000	190,181		
	44,115,559	35,592,119	8,523,440	8,120,000	(403,440)		
					2019		
		Accumulated	Net	Disposal	Gain/(loss)	Mode of	
	Cost	depreciation	book value	proceeds	on disposal	disposal	Particulars of buyer
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees		
Vehicles							
Suzuki Cultus	1,069,500	703,349	366,151	618,000	251,849	Negotiation	Mr. Gul Nawaz Kiyani, Lahore
Toyota Fortuner	5,511,880	3,939,039	1,572,841	3,550,000	1,977,159	Negotiation	Mr. Farooq Ibrahim, Karachi
	6 581 280	885 CV9 V	1 028 002	A 169 000	2 229 008		



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
21.1.3	The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follow	s:		
	Cost of sales	32	120,074,157	123,349,952
	Administrative and general expenses	34	2,450,493	2,517,346
			122,524,650	125,867,298

21.1.4 Most recent valuation of land, building, plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Materials & Design Services (Private) Limited as at June 30, 2016. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 44.

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value of revalued items would have been as follows:

		2020	
		Accumulated	Net
	Cost	depreciation	book value
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Freehold land	20,113,708	-	20,113,708
Building on freehold land	278,931,857	148,296,220	130,635,637
Plant and machinery	2,584,828,307	1,157,069,942	1,427,758,365
		2019	
		2019 Accumulated	Net
	Cost		Net book value
	Cost Rupees	Accumulated	
Freehold land		Accumulated depreciation	book value
Freehold land Building on freehold land	Rupees	Accumulated depreciation	book value Rupees

21.1.5 As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of freehold land, buildings on freehold land and plant and machinery are as follows:

	Rupees
Free hold land	155,958,000
Building on freehold land	293,769,350
Plant and machinery	1,386,400,000
	1,836,127,350

21.1.6 Operating fixed assets include certain assets leased out under operating lease arrangements to a related party, Hira Terry Mills Limited. The net book values of these assets as at reporting date are as follows:

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Free hold land	27,522,000	27,522,000
Building on freehold land	33,510,787	35,274,512
Plant and machinery	288,479,247	303,662,366
	349,512,034	366,458,878

The portion of land and building leased out has not been classified as investment property' under IAS 40 - Investment Property, as the portion leased out cannot be sold separately and the remaining portion held for manufacturing and administrative purposes is not insignificant in relation to total area/value of land and buildings owned by the Company.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

23 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

This represents investment in ordinary shares of Hira Terry Mills Limited ['the associated company']. The investment has been accounted for by using equity method. The details of ownership and investment are as under:

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Hira Terry Mills Limited		
Percentage of ownership interest	46.90%	46.90%
	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Cost of investment		
18,450,000 (2019: 18,450,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each	184,500,000	184,500,000
Bonus Issue @ 20%	36,900,920	36,900,920
Share of post acquisition losses - unrealized	(221,400,920)	(152,533,372)
	-	68,867,548

23.1.1 Extracts of financial statements of associated company

The assets and liabilities of Hira Terry Mills Limited as at the reporting date and related revenue and profit for the year then ended based on the un-audited financial statements are as follows:

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Non-current assets	2,894,224,086	2,069,775,999
Current assets	1,715,996,386	2,010,594,989
Non- current liabilities	1,520,556,357	478,984,175
Current liabilities	2,894,113,940	3,457,906,396
Revenue	1,172,677,460	2,214,694,162
Loss for the year	(663,336,031)	(1,211,069,918)
Other comprehensive loss	-	(2,221,712)
Total comprehensive loss	(663,336,031)	(1,213,291,630)
Break-up value per share	4.14	3.04
Share of loss - unrealized	(68,867,548)	(567,991,792)
Share of other comprehensive loss - unrealized	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	(1,041,983)

23.1.2 The Company's share of losses of associate has exceeded its interest in the associate. Accordingly, recognition of share of further losses has been discontinued.

		2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
	LONG TERM DEPOSITS		
	Utility companies and regulatory authorities	42,333,812	20,567,037
	Financial institutions	5,814,840	12,459,804
,		48,148,652	33,026,841
	STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS		
	Stores	290,446	919,452
	Spares and loose tools	37,076,501	35,498,110
		37,366,947	36,417,562



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

25.1 There are no spare parts held exclusively for capitalization as at the reporting date.

	_	Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
26	STOCK IN TRADE			
	Raw material		191,704,710	188,613,565
	Packing material		3,100,836	2,906,330
	Work in process		43,810,486	39,802,358
	Finished goods	26.1	50,182,052	20,352,646
			288,798,084	251,674,899

- Stock of finished goods include stock of waste valued at Rs. 11.305 million (2019: Rs. 3.49 million). The entire stock of waste is valued at net realizable value.
- Net realizable values of finished goods (yarn stock) were lower than their cost, which resulted in write-down of Rs. 6.651 million (2019: Rs. 0.678 million) which had been charged to cost of sales.

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
27	TRADE DEBTS			
	Local	27.1	184,218,388	606,080,008
	Impairment allowance for expected credit losses	27.2	(11,833)	(763,478)
			184,206,555	605,316,530

27.1 These include Rs. 23.601 million receivable from Hira Terry Mills Limited against the sale of yarn, a related party.

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
27.2	Impairment allowance for expected credit losses			
	As at beginning of the year		763,478	-
	Recognized during the year	37	11,833	763,478
	Written off during the year	35	(763,478)	-
	As at end of the year		11,833	763,478

28.2	28,996,716 - -	28,996,716 7,427,275 61,490,681
28.2	28,996,716 -	
28.2	28,996,716	28,996,716
	5,630,401	5,630,401
	1,953,431	1,953,431
	35,714,310	50,751,875
	-	10,000,000
	-	600,000
	450,000	900,000
28.1	6,863,169	4,104,512
	173,234,619	24,871,469
	28.1	28.1 6,863,169 450,000 - - 35,714,310 1,953,431



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

- 28.1 These represent advances to employees against future salaries and post employment benefits in accordance with the Company policy. No advances have been given to any of the directors of the Company.
- 28.2 These represents interest rebate receivable against reimbursment on account of 5% interest subsidy through notification by Ministry of Commerce and Textile.

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupee
ADVANCE INCOME TAX/INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE			
Advance income tax/income tax refundable		69,261,710	96,333,199
Provision for taxation	38	(26,263,854)	(30,021,218
		42,997,856	66,311,981
CASH AND BANK BALANCES			
Cash in hand		772,378	366,24
Cash at banks			
current accounts in local currency		8,843,631	7,950,428
		9,616,009	8,316,67

31

SALES - NET					
	Note	•	202	0	
		Finished			
		goods	Cotton	Waste	Total
		Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Local		1,688,168,814	-	62,754,811	1,750,923,625
Sales return		-	-	-	-
Sales tax		(278,054,237)	-	(9,495,438)	(287,549,675)
		1,410,114,577	-	53,259,373	1,463,373,950
			201	9	
		Finished			
		goods	Cotton	Waste	Total
		Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Local		2,534,754,362	27,933,110	119,802,023	2,682,489,495
Sales return		(36,500,376)	-	-	(36,500,376)
Sales tax		-	-	-	-
		2,498,253,986	27,933,110	119,802,023	2,645,989,119



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	201
		Rupees	Rupee
COST OF SALES			
Raw material consumed	32.1	920,962,912	1,792,589,497
Damaged stock written off		-	778,054,13
Packing material consumed		23,840,980	28,059,73
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed		27,134,369	61,792,06
Salaries, wages and benefits	32.2	183,364,753	257,208,93
Insurance		6,341,487	4,062,99
Power and fuel		265,384,364	290,742,78
Dyes and chemicals		4,577,536	6,199,00
Depreciation	21.1.3 & 22.1	124,189,663	128,468,62
Others		7,830,715	8,278,46
Manufacturing cost		1,563,626,779	3,355,456,22
Work in process			
As at beginning of the year		39,802,358	27,947,50
Transferred to related party		-	(1,572,90
As at end of the year		(43,810,486)	(39,802,35
		(4,008,128)	(13,427,75
Cost of goods manufactured		1,559,618,651	3,342,028,46
Finished goods			
As at beginning of the year		20,352,646	361,192,00
Transferred to related party		-	(3,299,80
As at end of the year		(50,182,052)	(20,352,64
		(29,829,406)	337,539,54
Cost of cotton sold		-	27,933,11
		1,529,789,245	3,707,501,12
Raw material consumed			
As at beginning of the year		188,613,565	1,324,207,93
Purchased during the year		924,054,057	1,462,982,37
Sold during the year		-	(27,933,11
Damaged stock written off		-	(778,054,13
As at end of the year		(191,704,710)	(188,613,56
		920,962,912	1,792,589,49

32.2 These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits and contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 9.739 million and Rs. 1.466 million respectively (2019: Rs. 6.594 million and Rs. 0.883 million).

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
33	DISTRIBUTION COST			
	Commission		26,750	1,408,265
	Others		9,660	1,485,216
			36,410	2,893,481



30,229,008

45,920,000

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES			
Salaries and benefits	34.1	23,478,057	19,309,245
Rent, rates and taxes		65,418	31,023
Printing and stationery		30,105	251,815
Communication		1,002,100	926,993
Electricity, water and gas		1,121,980	1,832,537
Repair and maintenance		107,910	193,014
Vehicles running and maintenance		2,312,113	1,049,391
Traveling and conveyance		2,185,285	1,177,142
Legal and professional		5,568,007	3,293,019
Auditor's remuneration	34.2	1,215,000	1,297,875
Fee and subscription		726,375	1,354,738
Entertainment		43,449	151,245
Insurance		727,571	632,445
Depreciation	21.1.3 & 22.1	2,534,483	2,621,809
Others		1,511,832	1,815,540
		42,629,685	35,937,831

34.1 These include charge in respect of contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 0.887 million (2019: Rs. 1.20 million).

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
34.2	Auditor's remuneration			
	Annual statutory audit		600,000	600,000
	Limited scope review		190,000	272,875
	Review report under Code of Corporate Governance		175,000	175,000
	Out of pocket expenses		250,000	250,000
			1,215,000	1,297,875
35	OTHER INCOME			
	Other income			
	Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	21.1.2	-	2,229,008
	Rental income		45,920,000	28,000,000

35.1 This represents rental income against assets leased out to Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party. (See note 21.1.6).

2019

2020

Note



NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

			Rupees	Rupe
	FINANCE COST			
	Interest on borrowings:			
	long term finances	36.1	91,710,916	93,577,60
	lease liabilities		1,156,608	2,309,37
	short term borrowings		72,453,388	123,297,63
			165,320,912	219,184,60
	Bank charges and commission		1,030,788	1,751,03
-			166,351,700	220,935,64
	During the year, interest of Rs. 32.152 million (2019: 22.78 million) on long by the lenders on their discretion.	term loans from dire		
		term loans from dire		has been waiv
			ectors and sponsors	has been waiv
-			ectors and sponsors	has been waiv
-	by the lenders on their discretion.		ectors and sponsors	has been waiv
-	by the lenders on their discretion. OTHER CHARGES		ectors and sponsors	has been waiv 201 Ruped
-	by the lenders on their discretion. OTHER CHARGES Gain on financial instruments		2020 Rupees	has been waiv 201 Ruped
-	OTHER CHARGES Gain on financial instruments Impairment allowance for expected credit losses		2020 Rupees	

TAXATION

Current taxation for current year for prior year	38.1	26,263,854 (3,053,646)	30,021,218 (113,016)
		23,210,208	29,908,202
Deferred taxation:	15	(10,620,632)	126,128,690
		12,589,576	156,036,892

- 38.1 Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 ['the Ordinance']. There is no relationship between the aggregate tax expense and accounting profit and accordingly, no numerical reconciliation has been presented.
- 38.2 The income tax assessments of the Company up to and including tax year 2019 have been completed by the concerned income tax authorities or are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance except for the tax years highlighted in note 20.1.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Unit	2020	2019
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED			
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders	Rupees	(303,788,571)	(2,015,842,109)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares			
outstanding during the year	No. of shares	86,577,920	86,577,920
Loss per share	Rupees	(3.51)	(23.28
There is no anti-diluting effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.			
		2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS			
Loss before taxation		(291,198,995)	(1,859,805,217)
Adjustments for non-cash and other items			
Finance cost		166,351,700	219,184,609
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		403,440	(2,229,008
Provision for employees retirement benefits		9,738,962	6,594,483
Depreciation		126,724,146	131,090,429
Impairment allowance for expected credit losses		11,833	763,478
Share of loss from associate		68,867,548 372,097,629	567,991,792 923,395,783
Changes in wanting conital		80,898,634	(936,409,434)
Changes in working capital Stores, spares and loose tools		(949,385)	62,820,959
Stock in trade		(37,123,185)	1,474,000,348
Trade debts		421,098,142	(523,050,579)
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables		(56,116,286)	(4,725,813
Trade and other payables		(300,390,556)	67,117,911
Long term deposits		(15,121,811)	(157,264
		11,396,919	1,076,005,562
Cash generated from operations		92,295,553	139,596,128
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS			
Cash and bank balances		9,616,009	8,316,676
		9,616,009	8,316,676

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 42

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise associated companies and key management personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and includes the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions during the year or has balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

Name of related party	Nature of relationship	Basis of relationship	Aggregate %age of shareholding in the Company
Hira Terry Mills Limited	Associated company	Investment	46.9000%
Muhammad Umer Virk	Key management personnel	Father of director	27.2800%
Saeed Ahmad Khan	Key management personnel	Director	0.0028%
Muhammad Mehboob	Key management personnel	Director	0.0006%



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Name of related party	Nature of relationship	Basis of relationship	Aggregate %age of shareholding in the Company
Shahnaz Umer	Key management personnel	Director	6.6135%
Sadiya Umair	Key management personnel	Director	6.5120%
Umair Umer	Close family member of director	Son of Director	0.0000%
Umaira Umer	Close family member of director	Daughter of Director	9.9400%

Transactions with key management personnel are limited to payment of short term employee benefits and office rent. The Company in the normal course of business carries out various transactions with associated companies and continues to have a policy whereby all such transactions are carried out on commercial terms and conditions which are equivalent to those prevailing in an orderly transaction between market participants at the date of transaction. Detail of transactions and balances with related parties is as follows:

			2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupees
42.1	Transactions with related parties			
	Nature of relationship	Nature of transactions		
	Associated company	Sales of yarn, cotton, dyes, scrap and chemicals	24,424,077	239,949,375
		Purchases of towels, cotton, waste, stores and spares	4,680	-
		Expenses charged	19,920,317	17,587,235
		Transfer of work in progress	-	1,572,905
		Transfer of finished good	-	3,299,808
		Rental income	45,920,000	28,000,000
		Debit note issued	-	273,373,850
		Debit note reversed	273,373,850	-
	Sponsors	Interest on borrowings charged	32,152,046	22,779,703
		Interest on borrowings waived	32,152,046	22,779,703
	Provident fund trust	Contribution for the year	2,352,050	2,090,508
42.2	Balances with related parties			
	Associated company	Advance against rent	189,127,049	-
		Receivable against expenses claimed	-	61,490,681
		Receivable against sale of yarn	23,601,006	-
	Sponsors	Borrowings	481,500,000	531,583,673
		Current account	49,939,673	-
	Key management personnel	Short Term employees benefits payable	1,164,240	1,185,136
	Provident fund trust	Payable to provident fund trust	2,467,220	1,622,737



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 43

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments by class and category are as follows:

		Note	2020	2019
			Rupees	Rupee
	Financial assets			
	Cash in hand	30	772,378	366,24
	Financial assets at amortized cost			
	Long term deposits	24	48,148,652	33,026,84
	Trade debts	27	184,206,555	605,316,53
	Advances to employess	28	6,863,169	4,104,51
	Due from related party	28	-	61,490,68
	Bank balances	30	8,843,631	7,950,42
			248,834,385	712,255,24
2	Financial liabilities			
	Financial liabilities at amortized cost			
	Long term finances	11	1,172,663,134	944,109,30
	Long term loan from directors and sponsors	10	-	213,493,00
	Lease liabilities	13	6,956,925	22,086,40
	Short term borrowings	17	809,279,436	1,345,646,18
	Accrued interest	18	366,899,587	242,790,44
	Trade creditors	16	182,017,052	698,912,70
	Due to related party	16	189,127,049	-
	Accrued liabilities	16	98,040,223	86,057,95
	Other payables	16	49,939,673	-
	Unclaimed dividend		2,757,216	2,757,21

FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT 44

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk). These risks affect revenues, expenses and assets and liabilities of the Company.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The Board of Directors has developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy focuses on unpredictability of financial markets,the Company's exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The management team of the Company is responsible for administering and monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management throughout the Company in accordance with the risk management framework.

The Company's exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

44.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

44.1.1 Credit risk management practices

In order to minimise credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with credit worthty counterparties and limiting significant exposure to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high external credit ratings. Where an external rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade debts and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on a regular basis. High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that adequate loss allowance is made in accordnace with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset.

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of 'performing'. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise thereis no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of business based on history with the counterparty.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is usually the case with various customers of the Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any amounts that are past due by more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. Therefore despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade debts to have low credit risk where the debtor has a good history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ocnsidered to be credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category	Description	Basis for recognizing ECL
Performing	The counterparty has low credit risk	Trade debts: Lifetime ECL Other assets: Twelve month ECL
Doubtful	Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition	Lifetime ECL
In default	There is evidence indicating the assets is credit-impaired	Lifetime ECL
Write-off	There is no realistic prospect of recovery	Amount is written-off

44.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk

Credit risk principally arises from debt instruments held by the Company as at the reporting date. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as follows:

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
Financial assets at amortized cost			
Long term deposits	24	48,148,652	33,026,841
Trade debts	27	184,206,555	605,316,530
Advances to employees	28	6,863,169	4,104,512
Due from related party	28	-	61,490,681
Bank balances	30	8,843,631	7,950,428
		248,062,007	711,888,992



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

44.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk grading. The credit quality of the Company's financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:

		External credit	Internal credit	12-month or	Gross carrying	Loss
	Note	rating	risk grading	life-time ECL	amount	allowance
					Rupees	Rupees
Long term deposits	24	N/A	Performing	12-month ECL	48,148,652	-
Trade debts	27	N/A	Performing	Lifetime ECL	184,218,388	(11,833)
Advances to employees	28	N/A	Performing	Lifetime ECL	6,863,169	-
Bank balances	30	A1 - A1+	N/A	12-month ECL	8,843,631	-
					248,073,840	(11,833)

(a) Long term deposits

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various financial institutions and utility companies. These deposits are placed for an indefinite period without any fixed maturity and will be due for refund only if the Company ceases to use the underlying services. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

Trade debts

For trade debts, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on trade debts by using internal credit risk gradings. As at the reporting date, trade debts are considered 'performing' including those past due amounting to Rs. 84.655 million as there is no significant increase in credit risk in respect of these debts since initial recognition. The ageing analysis of trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Neither past due nor impaired	99,563,362	232,980,428
Past due by upto 30 days	66,481,388	202,597,527
Past due by 31 days to 180 days	12,542,206	38,110,183
Past due by 180 days or more	5,631,432	132,391,870
	184.218.388	606.080.008

(c) Advanes to employees

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Accordingly, these are considered to have no credit risk.

(d) **Bank balances**

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various indpendent credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect any credit loss.

44.1.2 Concentration of credit risk

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade debts. The Company's one (2019: two) significant customers account for Rs. 23.601 million (2019: Rs. 249.163 million) of trade debts as at the reporting date, apart from which, exposure to any single customer does not exceed 10% (2018: 10%) of trade debts as at the reporting date. These significant customers have long standing business relationships with the Company and have a good payment record and accordingly non-performance by these customers is not expected.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

44.1.4 Collateral held

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets with the exception advances to employees which are secured against future salaries and post-employment benefits.

44.1.5 Changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses

The changes in impairment allowance for expected credit losses have been presented in note 37.

44.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

44.2.1 Liquidity risk management

The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations. This includes maintenance of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customer. The Company also maintains various lines of credit with banking companies. Further, the Company has continued support of its sponsors and in respect of any temporary liquidity shortfalls.

44.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

The following presents the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The analysis have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay and includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the reporting date.

			2020		
	Carrying amount	Contractual cash flows	One year or less	One to three years	More than three years
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Long term finances	1,180,260,050	1,473,146,488	402,647,791	541,117,162	529,381,535
Long term loan from directors					
and sponsors	-	-	-	-	-
Liabilities liabilities	6,956,925	7,499,004	7,499,004	-	-
Short term borrowings	809,279,436	809,279,436	809,279,436	-	-
Accrued interest	366,899,587	366,899,587	366,899,587	-	-
Trade creditors	182,017,052	182,017,052	182,017,052	-	-
Accrued liabilities	98,040,223	98,040,223	98,040,223	-	-
Other payables	49,939,673	49,939,673	49,939,673	-	-
Unclaimed dividend	2,757,216	2,757,216	2,757,216	-	-
Due to related party	189,127,049	189,127,049	189,127,049	-	-
	2,885,277,211	3,178,705,728	2,108,207,031	541,117,162	529,381,535



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

			2019		
	Carrying	Contractual	One year	One to	More than
	amount	cash flows	or less	three years	three years
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees
Long term finances	944,109,303	1,378,274,230	202,125,488	565,171,992	610,976,750
Long term loan from directors					
and sponsors	213,493,000	213,493,000	213,493,000	-	-
Liabilities liabilities	22,086,409	22,947,938	22,947,938	-	-
Short term borrowings	1,345,646,184	1,345,646,184	1,345,646,184	-	-
Accrued interest	242,790,441	242,790,441	242,790,441	-	-
Trade creditors	698,912,708	698,912,708	698,912,708	-	-
Accrued liabilities	86,057,950	86,057,950	86,057,950	-	-
Other payables	-	-	-	-	-
Unclaimed dividend	2,757,216	2,757,216	2,757,216	-	-
Due to related party	-	-	-	-	-
	3,555,853,211	3,990,879,667	2,814,730,925	565,171,992	610,976,750

44.2.3 Overdue financial liabilities

The Company is facing a temporary liquidity shortfall as a result of which it was unable to meet its obligations in respect of various debt finances. The details are as follows:

	Principal Rupees	interest Rupees	Total
	пиреез	пиреез	Rupees
Long term finances	26,584,005	159,660,604	186,244,609
Short term borrowings	809,279,436	157,505,476	966,784,912
	835,863,441	317,166,080	1,153,029,521

44.3 Market risk

44.3.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises from transactions and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than functional currency. The Company is not exposed to currency risk

44.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

(a) Interest rate risk management

The Company manages interest rate risk by analysing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate risk is managed by simulating various scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

Interest bearing financial instruments

The effective interest rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial statements. The Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
Fixed rate instruments		
Financial assets	-	-
Financial liabilities	17,276,667	21,575,000
Variable rate instruments		
Financial assets	-	-
Financial liabilities	1,169,940,308	1,158,113,712

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for its fixed rate instruments at fair value

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year by Rs. 11.7 million (2019: Rs. 11.58 million). A decrease of 100 basis points would have had an equal but opposite effect on profit for the year. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for taxation for the year.

44.3.3 Other Price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair values of the Company's financial instruments are not based on market prices.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 45

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from sponsors. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using the gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease and loan from directors and family members including current maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus debt. The Company's strategy is to maintain an optimal capital structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:

	Unit	2020	2019
Total debt	Rupees	1,187,216,975	1,179,688,712
Total equity	Rupees	68,981,598	(97,438,954)
Total capital employed		1,256,198,573	1,082,249,758
Gearing	% age	94.51	109.00

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly imposed by the providers of debt finance and subordination of long term loan from directors and sponsors (see note 10).

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 46

Financial Instruments

46.1.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Company measures some of its financial assets at fair value. Fair value measurements are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements and has the following levels.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). Level 3

The fair value hierarchy of assets measured at fair value and the information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows:

a) Recurring fair value measurements

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

b) Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their carrying

46.3 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments.

46.3.1 Recurring fair value measurements

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as follows:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	2020	2019
				Rupees	Rupees
Freehold land	-	183,480,000	-	183,480,000	183,480,000
Buildings	-	286,434,771	-	286,434,771	300,981,343
Plant and machinery	-	1,612,835,500	-	1,612,835,500	1,673,331,802

For fair value measurements categorized into Level 2 the following information is relevant:

	Valuation technique	Significant inputs	Sensitivity
Freehold land		Estimated purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition.	1 /
Buildings	Cost approach that reflects the cost to the market participants to construct assets of comparable utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence and depreciation. There was no change in valuation technique during the year.		A 5% increase in estimated construction and other ancillary expenditure would result in an increase in fair value of buildings by Rs. 14.322 million (2019: Rs. 15.049 million).



47

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

	Valuation technique	Significant inputs	Sensitivity
Plant and machinery	cost to the market participants to acquire assets of comparable	import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction,	A 5% increase in estimated purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable costs would results in an increase in fair value of plant and machinery by Rs. 80.642 million (2019: Rs. 83.667 million).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 2 is presented in note 46.3.1.

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the year.

46.3.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

	2020	2019
	Rupees	Rupees
RESTRICTION ON TITLE, AND ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY		
Mortgages and charges		

Charge over current assets Charge over fixed assets

3,007,000,000 3,007,000,000 2,744,384,404 2,744,384,404

48 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of managerial remuneration, allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and executives is as follows:

		2020		
	Chief Executive	Directors	Executives	
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	
Managerial remuneration	1,760,004	1,456,956	7,382,676	
House rent	639,996	800,004	1,814,151	
Motor vehicle expenses	437,125	437,816	1,256,371	
Utilities	47,965	14,894	114,944	
Post employment benefits	133,284	122,124	331,114	
	3,018,374	2,831,794	10,899,256	
Number of persons	1	1	4	
	2019			
	Chief Executive	Directors	Executives	
	Rupees	Rupees	Rupees	
Managerial remuneration	2,250,000	1,354,176	2,257,170	
House rent	1,500,000	902,784	1,504,780	
Motor vehicle expenses	229,056	317,340	181,899	
Utilities	33,936	8,391	22,475	
Post employment benefits	111,069	122,124	186,061	
	4,124,061	2,704,815	4,152,385	
Number of persons	1	1	2	



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES 49

- 49.1 During the year, short term borrowings amounting to Rs. 346.329 million, lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 14.29 million and accrued interest amounting to Rs. 18.496 million were converted into long term finances as referred to in note 11.4, 11.6, 11.7, 13.1, 17.1 and
- 49.2 During the year, short term borrowings and long term loan from directors and sponsors amounting to Rs. 266.007 million, and Rs. 213.493 million were transferred to equity as referred to in note 10, 12 and 17.2.

50 SEGMENT INFORMATION

- 50.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.
- All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 50.2
- All sales of the Company have originated from Pakistan. 50.3

51 **EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST**

The following information is based on the latest audited financial statements of the Hira Textile Mills Limited Employees Provident Fund for the year ended June 30, 2020.

		Unit	2020	2019
Size of the fund - total assets		Rupees	13,037,284	15,668,238
Cost/fair value of investments		Rupees	9,600,000	12,802,000
Percentage of investments made		% age	73.63%	81.71%
The break-up of investments is as follows:				
	2020)	2019	
	Rupees	% age	Rupees	% age
Government securities	9,300,000	71.33	11,800,000	75.31
Interest bearing loans to members	300,000	3.13	1,002,000	7.83
	9,600,000	74.46	12.802.000	83.14

The Company has complied with all the requirements set out by the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 for investments out of provident fund.

52 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

		Unit	2020	2019
52.1	Spinning			
	Production capacity			
	Number of spindles installed	No.	41,424	41,424
	Production Capacity after conversion into 20's count	Kgs	15,826,920	15,826,920
	Actual Production after conversion into 20's count	Kgs	10,195,318	11,996,095
	Actual production			
	Actual production after conversion into 20's count	Kgs	7,719,165	11,996,095



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

		Unit	2020	2019
52.2	Doubling			
	Production capacity			
	Number of spindles installed	No.	-	1,094
	Installed capacity after conversion into 20's count	Bags	-	51,560
	Actual production			
	Actual production after conversion into 20's count	Bags	-	-
52.3	Dyeing			
	Production capacity			
	Installed machines	No.	4	4
	Dyeing capacity	Kgs	150,000	750,000
	Actual production			
	Actual dyeing production	Kgs	53,592	520,334

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speed, twist per inch and raw materials used, etc. It also varies according to the pattern of production adopted. Difference of actual production with installed capacity is in normal course of business. During the year, dyeing unit has been leased out to the Hira Terry Mills Limited, a related party.

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE

The Company has leased out certain assets under operating lease arrangements to a related party, Hira Terry Mills Limited. Amounts of minimum lease payments receivable under the lease agreement are as follows:

	Note	2020	2019
		Rupees	Rupees
- not later than one year		54,259,200	50,240,000
- later than one year but not later than five years		149,097,646	203,356,846
- later than five year		-	-
		203,356,846	253,596,846
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES			
		2020	2019
Total number of employees		826	1,169
Average number of employees		769	1,068

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 55

There are no significant events after the reporting period which may require adjustment of and/or disclosure in these financial statements



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

IMPACT OF COVID - 19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 56

COVID-19 pandemic started at the end of December 2019 and broke out in China in January 2020. The slow down in Pakistan started in February 2020 following which a nationwide lockdown was imposed in Pakistan. Although, the Company's production facilities remained closed for about one and half month, material sales remained suspended throughout the last quarter of the financial year or were otherwise slow as the Company's buyers renegotiated contracts. However, things are now seen getting back to track and as sales continue to pick up with the pandemic easing out, the management expects sustainable growth in revenue and profit margins in the ensuing financial year. There is no financial impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities or items of income and expenses reported in these financial statements except adjustment for Net Realizeable Value as disclosed in note 26.2.

RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT 57

As at the reporting date, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.

58 GENERAL

- 58.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
- 58.2 Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there were no significant reclassifications during the year.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIRECTOR/CHAIRPERSON





An informed investor is a "safe" investor

SMS

Stay informed, invest wisely.

SECP SMS* verification service offers:

- Company verification SMS <incorporation ID> to 8181
- License verification

 SMS LV<space><incorporation ID>
 to 8181
- Agent verification SMS <Agent ID> to 8181
- Modaraba verification SMS MV<space><Modaraba authorization ID> to 8181

Name in sect in unscriptored and unknowned active To risk

Value Added Services:

- Saving & Investment Quotes
- Regulatory & Enforcement Actions taken by SECP
- Event Notification
- Scams Alerts

To subscribe; SMS sub to 8181

jamapunji.pk

@jamapunji_pk



Jama Punji is an Investo Education Initiative of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

*Regular SMS Rates will be applicable



PROXY FORM

The Company Secretary Hira Textile Mills Limited 44 E/1 Gulberg III Lahore.

I / We					of
			ber(s) of Hira Textile	Mills Limited, and a hold	ler of
			Ordinary Shares as p	per Share Register Folio	No.
		(in case of Cer	ntral Depository Sy	stem Account Holder	A/C
No	Participant I.D No) he	reby appoint		of
	anot	her member of the Compa	any as per Share Regi	ster Folio No	
or (Failing him / her	of _		another mem	ber of the Company) as	my/
our proxy to attend and	vote for me / us and on m	y / our behalf at Annual	General Meeting of	the Company, to be he	ld on
October 28, 2020 (WED	NESDAY) at 02:30 PM at the	e Registered Office (MILL	SITE) of the compan	y (i.e. 8-KM, Manga Rai	wind
Road, District Kasur) and	at any adjournment thereo	f.			
As witness my hand this		day of 2020 signed by t		2020 signed by the	said
				in presen	ce of
Witness		Signature			
Cianakana				Affix Revenue Stamp	
Signature					
Notes:					

- Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office / head Office not less than 48 hours before the meeting duly stamped, signed and witnessed.
- b. Signature must agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.
- In case of Central Depository System Account Holder, an attested copy of identity Card should be attached to c. this proxy form.
- No person shall act as proxy unless he is member of the company.



8-Km, Manga Raiwind Road, Raiwind District Kasur. Tel: (92-42) 35392305-07, Fax: (92-42) 35392308 E-mail: hira@hiramills.com.pk, URL: www.hiratex.com.pk